ARUP

Appendix C

Geotechnical Planning Review Report

Geotechnical Planning Review Report for Proposed Minor Relaxation of Building Height Restriction for Permitted House Development in "Residential (Group C) 2" Zone at Lot No. 214 & the Extension thereto in D.D. 219 and Adjoining Government Land, Tin Shek Road, Sai Kung, New Territories

November 2024

Contents Amendment Record

This report has been issued and amended as follows:

Issue	Revision	Description	Date	Prepared by
1	0	First issue	November 2024	IC

Proposed Minor Relaxation of Building Height Restriction for Permitted House Development in "Residential (Group C) 2" Zone at Lot No. 214 & the Extension thereto in D.D. 219 and Adjoining Government Land, Tin Shek Road, Sai Kung, New Territories <u>Geotechnical Planning Review Report</u>

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	INTRODUCTION	1
2.	EXISTING INFORMATION	2
2.1	THE SITE TOPOGRAPHY AND SURROUNDING FACILITIES	2
2.2	EXISTING SLOPE/RETAINING WALL FEATURES	2
2.3	GEOLOGY	3
2.4	NATURAL TERRAIN LANDSLIDE INVENTORY	3
2.5	HISTORICAL LANDSLIDE CATCHMENT INVENTORY	3
2.6	BOULDER INVENTORY	3
2.7	GASP REPORT	3
3.	PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT	5
4.	GEOTECHNICAL CONSIDERATIONS	6
4.1	GENERAL	6
4.2	GROUND INVESTIGATION WORKS	6
4.3	EXISTING SLOPES AND RETAINING WALLS	7
4.4	FOUNDATION AND SUB-STRUCTURE WORKS	8
4.5	EXCAVATION AND LATERAL SUPPORT WORKS	9
5.	CONCLUSION	10
6.	REFERENCES	11

Proposed Minor Relaxation of Building Height Restriction for Permitted House Development in "Residential (Group C) 2" Zone at Lot No. 214 & the Extension thereto in D.D. 219 and Adjoining Government Land, Tin Shek Road, Sai Kung, New Territories <u>Geotechnical Planning Review Report</u>

FIGURES

Figure 1.1	Location Plan of the Site
Figure 1.2	Lot Boundary Plan of the Site
Figure 1.3	Aerial View of the Site
Figure 2.1	Topographic Survey Plan
Figure 2.2	Topographic Survey Plan in Map
Figure 3	Extract of GASP Report Map – Geological Map
Figure 4	ENTLI – Landslide Record
Figure 5	Area of QRA of Boulder Fall Hazards No. S7_U
Figure 6	Extract of GASP Report Map – Geotechnical Land Use Map
Figure 7	Extract of GASP Report Map – Physical Constraints Map
Figure 8	Record from Historical Landslide Catchment Inventory
APPENDICE	<u>s</u>

Appendix 1 Site Photographic Records

- Appendix 2 Conceptual Drawings of the Proposed Re-development
- Appendix 3 Location Plan and Slope Maintenance Responsibility Records
- Appendix 4 Report of Site-specific Ground Investigation

Proposed Minor Relaxation of Building Height Restriction for Permitted House Development in "Residential (Group C) 2" Zone at Lot No. 214 & the Extension thereto in D.D. 219 and Adjoining Government Land, Tin Shek Road, Sai Kung, New Territories <u>Geotechnical Planning Review Report</u>

1. <u>INTRODUCTION</u>

A redevelopment of a new 2 storey house plus 1 storey of basement carpark is proposed within Lot No. 214 in D.D. 219 & Extension Thereto and adjoining Government land where an existing building is located (The Site). In support of a S16 planning application for minor relaxation of Building Height restriction for permitted house development, this Geotechnical Planning Review Report (GPRR) is submitted to form part of the submission. Amax Architects and Surveyors Limited has been appointed to be the Consultant responsible for this study and submission. This report contained the desk study summarizing the available information on geological and ground condition. It is anticipated that a detailed design of the development will be submitted to Building Department for approval after the GPRR is accepted by various government departments.

The geotechnical planning review is generally carried out according to the document "GEO Advice Note for Planning Applications under Town Planning Ordinance (Cap.131)".

2. <u>EXISTING INFORMATION</u>

2.1 THE SITE TOPOGRAPHY AND SURROUNDING FACILITIES

The Site is currently occupied by a building structures which would be demolished. The photographs of the Site are presented in *Appendix 1* for information.

The Site is polygonal in shape and comprised of flat grounds at 2 levels of +85.5mPD and +82.9mPD which are demarcated by existing walls within the Site. The total site area is about 681.4m².

Unregistered walls could be observed retaining the western boundary of the Site and the adjacent Tin Shek Road respectively. A sloping ground facing East is observed adjacent to the unregistered walls within the Site. Opposite to the unregistered walls at another side of Tin Shek Road there is a registered retaining wall with No. 7SE-D/R46 which is about 5m away from the Site area. At the northern boundary, the Site is bounded by Tin Shek Road. The eastern and southern boundaries of the Site are bounded by an unregistered slope below 3m high. A registered slope with No. 7SE-D/CR150 which is about 3m from the Site area is observed bounding along the toe of the unregistered slope. The superstructure and the foundation of the existing building would be demolished and cleared out for the subject re-development. The footprint of the proposed main building is approximately 17m long and 8m wide on plan.

Figures 1.1 and 1.2 and *1.3* show the location, lot boundary and an aerial view of the Site respectively.

Figures 2.1 shows the topographic survey plan of the Site and *Figures 2.2*, shows the topographic survey plan with the base map 7-SE-25A.

2.2 EXISTING SLOPE/RETAINING WALL FEATURES

According to Slope Information System (SIS) of Geotechnical Engineering Office (GEO) as presented in *Appendix 3*, details man-made slopes which would be affected by the redevelopment works are as follows:

The feature 7SE-D/CR150 is comprised of a soil/rock cut slope and a toe retaining wall. It contains 6 sub-divisions according to land status. The cut slope portion is 6m high at maximum. The average angle of the cut slope is 50 degrees while the 3.5m tall wall is with a face angle of 90 degrees. Both of the cut slope and retaining wall are around 110 long. It is facing towards south-eastern direction. The crest facility of the slope is a road/footpath with low traffic density while the toe facilities is cottage therefore the Consequence-to-life category is 1. A Stage 2 Study (S2R155/2004) report was compiled by C M Wong & Associates Limited in January 2005. No Dangerous Hillside (DH) Order to the private lot owners were required but only a Type 3 Advisory Letter were recommended to one of the owners.

The feature 7SE-D/R46 is a masonry retaining wall which is 4.2m high and 32m long with face angle of 85 degrees. It is supporting the platform surrounding the residential building of Fung Ming Villa which is at the crest area of the wall before 1977. The crest facility is a densely-used sitting out area while the toe facility is the Tin Shek Road with

very low traffic density. Therefore, the Consequence-to-life category is 2. It contains 2 sub-divisions according to land status.

The existing unregistered slope adjacent to the eastern and southern boundary of the Site is at maximum 1.8m high and 45m long with face angle of 27 degrees sloping down towards South-east. It is covered with vegetation surface. The toe found the feature 7SE-D/CR150 while the crest found the Site. No adverse deteriorating of the slope was observed during site inspection.

The existing unregistered retaining wall along the western and northern boundary has the maximum retained height of 2.6m and length of 40m approximately. Its face angle is 90 degrees facing towards East. A 1.4m high fence wall is protruding from the top of the unregistered wall. The crest facility of the wall is the Tin Shek Road and the toe facility of the wall is the Site. No adverse deteriorating of the wall was observed during site inspection.

2.3 GEOLOGY

According to a geological map in Geotechnical Area Studies Program (GASP) – Report 9 "East New Territories" published by Geotechnical Control Office in 1988, the site is underlain by COARSE TUFF. No geological faults is identified at the site. The geological map is reproduced in *Figure 3*.

2.4 NATURAL TERRAIN LANDSLIDE INVENTORY

According to the Natural Terrain Landslide Inventory (NTIL) shown in Geotechnical Engineering Office's (GEO) online system Ginfo, five relict landslides were first observed in 1963 within a circular area with radius about 200m from the Site. A graphical NTLI-Landslide Record is shown in *Figure 4*.

2.5 HISTORICAL LANDSLIDE CATCHMENT INVENTORY

According to the Historical Landslide Catchment Inventory (HLCI) shown in Geotechnical Engineering Office's online system Ginfo, the catchment No. 7SE-D/DF9 with a plan area of $111745m^2$ fell within a circular area with radius about 200m from the Site. Six numbers of relict ENTIL records were located within the catchment. A graphical HLCI-Landslide Record is shown in *Figure 8*.

2.6 BOULDER INVENTORY

According to the GEO's Quantitative Risk Assessment (QRA) of Boulder Fall Hazards No. S7_U, no boulder fall records are found in the study area. The corresponding extract of information is shown in *Figure 5*.

2.7 GASP REPORT

The GASP – Report 9 contained a layout namely Geotechnical Land Use Map (GLUM)

which indicated the Site belongs to Class II. Any development fall into this Class will possibly require average intensity of site investigation works and normal engineering cost of development. Another map namely Physical Constraints Map indicated that the Site did not have no geological constraints. The extracts of the portions of the two maps are included in *Figures 6 & 7*.

All of the above existing information are based on some observation from site inspections, the plans from the GASP report in year 1988, historical records and current slope information from GEO's Ginfo. The engineering findings and assessment concluded and included this report forming the desk study basis of the geotechnical suitability for the redevelopment would be subject to future detailed design stage.

3. <u>PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT</u>

The proposed re-development will include a 2-storeys house with a basement, provision of staircases, minor flattening of the sloping ground within the site to form the podium, after the demolition of the existing building.

The proposed building will contain floors from B/F to R/F. Staircases and rooms would be constructed at the G/F and 1/F floor of the building. Flushing and sprinkler water tanks would be provided at the R/F floor. Car-parking area would be provided at the B/F. The floor levels of B/F, G/F, 1/F and R/F would be +82.35mPD, +85.65mPD, +89.65mPD and +93.65mPD respectively.

With reference to the Conceptual Drawing of the Proposed Development, *Appendix 2* shows the footprint of the proposed re-development.

4. <u>GEOTECHNICAL CONSIDERATION</u>

4.1 GENERAL

The following geotechnical works related to the proposed re-development would be required:

- a) Ground Investigation Works
- b) Existing Slopes and Retaining Walls
- c) Foundation and Sub-structures Works
- d) Excavation and Lateral Support Works

4.2 GROUND INVESTIGATION WORKS

There is no borehole information available from the Geotechnical Information Unit (GIU) of the Civil Engineering Development Department (CEDD) for the Site area.

To identify the geology of the Site and retrieve the geological information for this development, site-specific ground investigation (GI) works were carried out and completed in July/August 2024. The ground investigation works included 3 boreholes with field tests, groundwater monitoring and soil/rock sampling and 7 trial pits at the boundary of the Site to expose widely the ground conditions at shallow depth from ground surface.

The ground materials samples obtained from the site-specific GI could be used to assess a set of engineering design parameters of each type of soils and bedrock, and to determine the groundwater table based on the groundwater monitoring for the engineering design of the foundation and excavation and lateral support (ELS) works.

A ground slab of around 200mm thick covers the most of the ground surface of the Site. The boreholes logs indicate the Site is underlain by Fill, subsurface Concrete materials, Colluvium then decomposed Tuff. The bedrock head levels vary from about 12m to 16m deep from the existing ground level.

Based on the results of existing site investigation data, the geology of the Site comprises of the following major geological strata:

(a) <u>Fill</u>

A layer of fill was encountered below 200mm thick ground slab in most of the ground investigation stations. Thickness generally varies from 0.3m (TP3, TP6) to maximum 3m (BH3P). The fill is described as silt/sand/gravel/cobble/concrete with gravel/cobble sized concrete/rock fragments/rootlets/brick fragments.

(b) <u>Colluvium</u>

A layer of colluvium is encountered below the Fill layer. The thickness of the colluvium is around 6m. The colluvium is described as silt/gravel/cobble/boulder with rock fragments/rootlets.

(c) <u>Completely Decomposed Tuff (CDT)</u>

CDT is extremely weak, pinkish brown/brownish grey, completely decomposed Tuff (Stiff to very stiff, sandy silt with gravel sized rock fragments / Very dense, sandy gravel sized rock fragments).

(d) <u>Highly Decomposed Tuff (HDT)</u>

HDT is weak to moderately weak, greyish brown and grey, highly decomposed coarse as Tuff with very closely and closely spaced, rough undulating and planar, narrow, iron stained joints.

(e) <u>Moderately Decomposed Tuff (MDT)</u>

MDT is strong/moderately strong, brownish grey/grey/greyish brown, spotted with black and white, moderately/slightly decomposed coarse as Tuff with very closely/closely/medium/locally medium spaced, rough undulating and planar, narrow/very narrow/extremely narrow, iron/chlorite stained joints.

(f) Slightly Decomposed Tuff (SDT)

SDT is strong, brownish grey/grey/dark grey/spotted with black and white, slightly decomposed coarse ash Tuff, with closely/medium/widely/very widely spaced, rough undulating and planar, very narrow/extremely narrow, iron/chlorite stained joints.

According to the groundwater monitoring records from 12-08-2024 to 09-09-2024 as a part of the site-specific ground investigation, it could be observed that the highest groundwater level was +81.70mPD (around 3.8m below existing ground level) and the lowest groundwater level was +76.78mPD (around 8.7m below existing ground level). The design groundwater levels and any necessary pumping tests would be investigated from further groundwater monitoring results in the detailed design stage.

A copy of the ground investigation fieldworks report for this Development is enclosed in *Appendix 4*.

4.3 EXISTING SLOPES AND RETAINING WALLS

a.) Unregistered Slope Adjacent to the Southern and Eastern Boundaries of the Site and Existing Feature 7SE-D/CR150

Since the earth excavation works within the Site would be carried out at the crest of the unregistered slope which is at the crest of the existing feature 7SE-D/CR150, overburden loads on the descending sloping grounds of the slopes would be reduced. This would have a beneficial effect on the stability of the sloping grounds. As the loads on the sides of the pipe pile walls of the proposed ELS works would be different, unbalanced stress would result. The resultant unbalanced forces could have a detrimental effect on the sloping grounds. Besides, loads from the permanent foundation within the Site would be founded as deep as possible to ensure no additional loads exerted on the sloping grounds. The details of ensuring no adverse loadings and effects on the sloping grounds would be catered for during the detailed design stages.

b.) Existing Retaining Wall 7SE-D/R46

The proposed ELS works at the Site includes excavation of earth to form space for the construction of the permanent foundation works. The retaining wall 7SE-D/R46 is at 5m from the Site and thus fall into the influence zone of settlement due to the earth excavation works. The wall thus would experience ground settlements due to the pipe pile wall deflection and groundwater drawdown. The settlement would be controlled to 25mm at maximum and the effects of settlements on the retaining wall would be maintained at minimal. Regarding the loads from the permanent foundation within the Site, they would be founded as deep as possible to minimize the effects to the existing retaining wall including the sub-surface portion of the wall. The details of controlling

and minimize the effects on the wall would be catered for during the detailed design stages.

4.4 FOUNDATION AND SUB-STRUCTURES WORKS

The proposed development includes a low-rise building with main loading on its proposed foundation from the superstructure weight, pressure from the groundwater and wind, the lateral earth pressures and the other vertical loads during the service period of the building. Thus, shallow foundation system are appropriate for the facilities. In the followings, the feasibility of some common foundation systems in Hong Kong for this project are discussed.

a. Bored Piles

Bored piling is the common foundation type suitable all types of buildings. The only drawback is its high construction cost.

b. Driven H-piles

According to the Code of Practice for Foundation 2017, the minimum pile length of pile foundation is 10m. As unveiled from the site-specific ground investigation, the bedrock would be around 12m below existing ground level, the bouldery colluvium layer above the bedrock would require pre-boring before driving the Hpiles into the ground and hard driving operation would be anticipated. The environmental nuisance caused by the driving action would be a major problem to the existing facilities and residential building surrounding the Site. It will render driven H-piles is not a suitable option for the project.

c. Mini-piles

Mini-piles socketed in Grade III or better rock are considered to be a feasible foundation option since vertical and raking mini-piles can be used together to provide a foundation system that can resist vertical loads and lateral loads.

A mini-pile has a lower design capacity than that of a socketed H-pile therefore mini-pile is suitable for the low-rise building in the project if the rockhead level is deep and the soil stratum is weak.

d. Rock socketed H-piles

Rock socketed H-piles embedded in Grade III or better rock are considered to be a feasible foundation option if the rockhead is not shallow. The rock socketed Hpiles can be designed to resist the vertical loads and lateral loads acting on the pile foundations.

Predrilling will be carried out to confirm the rockhead level and adequacy of the founding materials. The locations of the predrill holes will be carefully planned such that all proposed socketed H-piles will be located within a distance of 5m maximum from a completed borehole or a predrill hole.

e. Shallow Foundation

Shallow foundation founding on competent soil stratum is considered to be

feasible foundation system for the development. As the proposed facilities will be short or shallow, and the site area is not congested with proposed facilities therefore the sufficient subsurface space could be allowed, wide shallow foundations can be used to achieve a feasible foundation solution to the project. Nonetheless, the competence of the soil stratums should be verified by plate load tests. If sufficient bearing capacity could not be attained, ground improvement for the incompetent soil stratum or other feasible types of foundation system should be sought.

Based on the above discussions, it is considered that shallow foundation founding on competent soil or mini-pile socketed in rock will be feasible foundation options for the proposed development.

The sub-structure works is mainly the construction of basement. The basement walls and the ground floor slabs would be constructed after the completion of the excavation and lateral support works as mentioned below and the completion foundation works for a proposed bottom-up construction sequence.

4.5 EXCAVATION AND LATERAL SUPPORT WORKS

Based on the planning submission, works of ELS to provide space for the construction of the sub-structures construction, including foundation and basement, and removal of existing sub-structure would thus be required. The loadings on the ELS system included the lateral earth pressures, groundwater pressure, surcharge and loadings from subsurface structures surrounding the Site. Proposed pipe pile walls as temporary supports against the mentioned loads are the most suitable as the ELS works of the Site. They are preferred because they are viable to be constructed to penetrate hard underground materials within the Site. The pipe pile walls would be either cantilevered with socketed into rock or braced with temporary shorings depending on the calculation in the later detailed design stage. The pipe pile walls would be installed to avoid damaging existing structures especially for those underground. Demolition of the temporary shoring should be carried out at the end of the ELS stage if shorings are required. Grout curtain would be provided to provide a cut-off effect to the groundwater seepage through the steel walls into the Site. As dewatering would be necessary within the Site, the curtain also extend the seepage path underneath the toe of the pile walls to limit excessive groundwater drawdown outside the Site and piping within the site due to the dewatering. The performance of the dewatering would be evaluated by pumping tests if required.

Pipe pile wall retaining the ground with cantilever actions without strutting system as the ELS works option was preferred to provide a non-congested excavation underground.

5. <u>CONCLUSIONS</u>

A geotechnical planning review of the Site for proposed development is concluded as below:

The 2-storeys house with a storey basement carpark would cater shallow earth excavation works feasible at the Site, thus providing a simple scheme of embedded cantilevered wall for the proposed ELS, sub-structures and shallow foundation works.

Therefore, any adverse effects on the existing utilities, buildings and structures adjacent to the Site from all of the proposed ELS, sub-structures works and foundation works for this redevelopment would be reduced as much as possible. Conversely, all the effects of surrounding facilities on the proposed works within the Site would be taken into account in the design of works.

Condition surveys would be carried out before the start of the works and geotechnical and structural monitoring stations would be installed for quantifying the effects of the works on the monitored facilities.

The detailed site-specific ground investigation works that had been carried out and laboratory tests to be carried out will determine the geological information and groundwater of the Site and the design parameters for the proposed ELS, foundation and the sub-structures works of this re-development in detailed design stage.

Moreover, the detailed design of the ELS, foundation and sub-structures works should be submitted accordingly to the Building Authority for approval in next stage.

In conclusion, it is considered that the proposed development at the Site based on the S16 planning application is geotechnically feasible with the schemes opting for pipe piles as the main proposed ELS, sub-structures works and shallow foundation as the proposed foundation works.

6. <u>CONCLUSIONS</u>

GCO (1988) – Geotechnical Area Studies Programme, East New Territories, GASP Report IX, Geotehnical Control Office, Civil Engineering Services Department.

GEO (2024) – Natural Terrain Landslide Inventory, Slope Information System, Geotechnical Engineering Office, Civil Engineering and Development Department.

GEO (2024) – QRA of Boulder Fall Hazard, Slope Information System, Geotechnical Engineering Office, Civil Engineering and Development Department.

Appendix 1 Site Photographic Records



Location Plan of Photos





<u>Photo V1 – General View of the Entrance to the Existing</u>

Building



Photo V2 – General View of Central Portion of the Existing

<u>Building</u>



Photo V3 – General View of Northern Portion of the Existing

Building

Appendix 2

Conceptual Drawings of the Proposed Redevelopment



	S	SCALE = 1:250		
Drawing Title		Project PROPOSED DOMESTIC BLDG. IN LOT NO. 214 IN D.D. 219 & THE EXTENSION THERETO.	Figure no. GP-(001
	BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN	Al moon	Prepared AF	Checked JW
		創建坊建築測量及顧問有限公司 AMAX ARCHITECTS AND SURVEYORS LIMITED UNIT 12, 9斤, YUEN FAT INDUSTRUL BUILDING, 25 WANG CHU ROND, KWICON BHY. TEL: 3702 1188 FAX: 3702 1181	Date NOV. 2024	Scale 1:250





	SCALE = 1:250		
Drawing Title	Project PROPOSED DOMESTIC BLDG. IN LOT NO. 214 IN D.D. 219 & THE EXTENSION THERETO.	Figure no. GP-(003
FIRST FLOOR PLAN	刻 moth	Prepared AF	Checked JW
	創建坊建築測量及顧問有限公司 AMAX ARCHITECTS AND SURVEYORS LIMITED UNIT 12, 9/F, YUEN FAT INDUSTRAL BUILDING, 25 WANG CHUI ROAD, KONICON BAY. TEL: 3702 1188 FAX: 3702 1181	Date NOV. 2024	Scale 1:250





Appendix 3 Location Plan and Slope Maintenance Responsibility Records

7SE-D/CR150



BASIC INFORMATION

Location:	Along Mau Tin Lane, Hing Keng Shek Village, Sai Kung
Registration Date:	19-12-1997
Ranking Score (NPRS):	45 (LPMit)
Date of Formation:	pre-1977
Date of Construction/ Modification:	29-03-2006
Data Source:	Project Office
Approximate Coordinates:	Easting : 843746 Northing : 824970

CONSEQUENCE-TO-LIFE CATEGORY

Facility at Crest:	Road/footpath with low traffic density
Distance of Facility from Crest (m):	0
Facility at Toe:	Cottage, licensed and squatter area
Distance of Facility from Toe (m):	2
Consequence-to-life Category:	1
Remarks:	N/A

SLOPE PART

(1) Max. Height (m): 6 Length (m): 110 Average Angle (deg): 50

WALL PART

(1) Max. Height (m): 3.5 Length (m): 110 Face Angle (deg): 90

MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITY

(1) Sub Div.: 1 **Mixed Feature** Party: DD219 LOT 214 &Ext Thereto Agent: N/A Land Cat.: 5a Reason Code: 43 **MR Endorsement Date:** 04-01-2021 (2) Sub Div.: 2 Land Cat.: 5a MR Endorsement Date: 04-01-2021 **Mixed Feature** Party: DD219 LOT 221 Agent: N/A Reason Code: 43 Agent: Lands D MR Endorsement Date: 04-01-2021 (3) Sub Div.: 3 **Mixed Feature** Land Cat.: 5b(vi) Reason Code: 62 Party: Lands D Agent: N/A (4) Sub Div.: 4 **Mixed Feature** Party: STTSX1945 Land Cat.: 1,5a Reason Code: 3 MR Endorsement Date: 04-01-2021 MR Endorsement Date: 04-01-2021 (5) Sub Div.: 4 **Mixed Feature** Party: DD210 LOT 536 Agent: N/A Land Cat.: 1,5a Reason Code: 43 (6) Sub Div.: 5 **Mixed Feature** Party: DD210 LOT 536 Agent: N/A Land Cat.: 1 Reason Code: 1 MR Endorsement Date: 04-01-2021 **Mixed Feature** MR Endorsement Date: 04-01-(7) Sub Div.: 6 Party: DD210 LOT 524 Agent: N/A Land Cat.: 1,5a Reason Code: 1,43 2021

DETAILS OF SLOPE / RETAINING WALL

Date of Inspection:	16-01	-2020
Data Source:	Proje	ct Office
Slope Part Drainage:	(1)	Position: On slope Size(mm): 225
Wall Part Drainage:	(1)	Position: Crest Size(mm): 225



SLOPE PART

Slope Part (1)Surface Protection (%):Bare: 0Vegetated: 60Chunam: 30Shotcrete: 10Other Cover: 0Material Description:Material type: Soil & RockGeology: N/ABerm:No. of Berms: N/AMin. Berm Width (m): N/AWeepholes:Size (mm): 75Spacing (m): 1.5

WALL PART

Wall Part (1)		
Type of Wall:	Wall Material: Concrete	Wall Location: Wall at toe
Berm:	No. of Berms: N/A Min	. Berm Width (m): N/A
Weepholes:	Size (mm): 75 Spacing	(m): 1.5

SERVICES

(1)	Utilities Type: Water Main	Size(mm): 80	Location: On crest	Remark: N/A
(2)	Utilities Type: Water Main	Size(mm): 80	Location: On slope	Remark: N/A

CHECKING STATUS INFORMATION

N/A

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

GIU Cell Ref.:	7SE25A4		
Map Sheet Reference (1:1000):	7SE-25A		
Aerial Photos:	CN10978 (1995), CN10979 (1	995)	
Nearest Rainguage Station (Station Number):	Pak Kong Tsui Hang Special	Area Manageme	nt Centre(N50)
Data Collected On:	16-01-2020		
Date of Construction, Subsequent Modification and Demolition:	Modification: Constructed	Before: 1974	After: 1974
Related Reports/Files or Documents:	N/A		
Remarks:	N/A		
Follow Up Actions:	N/A		
DH-Order (To Be Confirmed with Buildings Department):	None		
Advisory Letter (To Be Confirmed with Buildings Department):	None		



LPMIS:

Agreement No.: CE13/2002 Report No.: S2R155/2004

ENHANCED MAINTENANCE INFORMATION

From Maintenance Department: (Last Updated Date: 01/08/2024) Upgraded by:

Prescriptive Design Using GEO Report No. 56: N/A Non-prescriptive Design Including Conventional Design: N/A

Improved by:

Type 1 / Type 2 Prescriptive Measures: Yes

Type 3 Prescriptive Measures (not up to upgrading standard): Yes

Actual Completion Date: 18-07-2006

STAGE 1 STUDY REPORT

Inspected On:	12-03-1997
Weather:	Mainly Fine
District:	ME
	The finder of the main and the



Section No:
Height(m):
Type of Toe Facility:
Distance from Toe(m):
Type of Crest Facility:
Distance from Crest(m):
Consequence Category:
Engineering Judgement:
Section No:
Type of Toe Facility:
Distance from Toe(m):
Type of Crest Facility:
Distance from Crest(m):
Consequence Category:
Engineering Judgement:
Sign of Seepage:
Criterion A satisfied:

1 1

1-1
H1 : 6 , H2 : 2
Cottage, licensed and squatter area
2
Road/footpath with low traffic density
0
1
Р
2-2
Residential
5
Road with very low traffic
5
1
Р
Slope : Signs of seepage
Wall : Signs of seepage
Ν



CIVIL ENGINEERING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

Sign of Distress:	Slope : Reasonable (near crest, mid-portion) Wall : N/A
Criterion D satisfied:	Ν
Non-routine maintenance required:	Ν
Note:	N/A
Masonry wall/Masonry facing:	Y
Note:	Wall B-part squares rubble.
Consequence category (for critical section):	1
Observations:	N/A
Emergency Action Required:	Ν
Action By:	N/A

ACTION TO INITIATE PREVENTIVE WORKS

Criterion A/Criterion D:	N/A
Action By:	N/A
Further Study:	Ŷ
Action By:	Mixed

OTHER EXTERNAL ACTION

Check / repair Services:	Ν
Action By:	N/A
Non-routine Maintenance:	Ν
Action By:	N/A

eLPMIS

LPM/LPMit Details Report	
LPM Study Feature No.:	7SE-D/CR 150
Location:	ALONG MAU TIN LANE, TIN KENG SHEK VILLAGE, SAI KUNG
District Council:	Sai Kung
Maintenance Responsibility (At the Time of Selection):	Mixed
Responsible Party for Maintenance of Government Portion:	Lands D
Private Lot No.:	DD219 Lot 214 and Ext, DD210 Lot536,DD210 Lot 524, STTSX2270
LPM/LPMit Study	
Agreement No.:	CE13/2002
Study Type:	Stage 2 Study
Consultant:	C M Wong & Associates Ltd.
GEO Managing Section / Engineer:	SS / SS 2
Study Status:	Study completed



SLOPE INFORMATION SYSTEM

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING OFFICE CIVIL ENGINEERING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

Design Approach:	N/A
Option Assessment Accepted:	N/A
Study Report No.:	S2R155/2004
Programme / Actual Commencement:	07-03-2003
Programme / Actual Completion:	06-02-2005
Report Recommendation (For Stage 2 Study):	Advisory Letter
District Check Status:	Checked
Checking Certificate No.:	N/A
GEO Engineer's Remarks:	Advisory Letter for private port CNPCS score for the feature doe

Advisory Letter for private portion. Further study for Government portion, however, the CNPCS score for the feature does not qualify for action under LPM Programme and it is returned to maintenance Department for follow-up action.

LPM/LPMit Works

Works Contract No.:	N/A
GEO Managing Section / Engineer:	N/A / N/A
Contractor:	N/A
Progress Status:	N/A
Reason of Study Termination / Works Deletion (If Necessary):	N/A
Forecast Commencement Date:	N/A
Forecast Completion Date:	N/A
Completion Cert. Issued:	N/A
Site Handed Over to Maintenance Department on:	N/A
Estimated Cost for Upgrading (HK\$M):	N/A
Maintenance Manual No.:	N/A
Actual Works:	N/A
No. of Tree Felled:	N/A
No. of Tree Planted (Incl. Transplant):	N/A
% Bare of Slope Surfacing:	N/A
% Vegetated of Slope Surfacing:	N/A
% Shotcrete of Slope Surfacing:	N/A
Other Hard Surface of Slope Surfacing:	N/A

















(7SE-D/CR150)



List of Slope Maintenance Responsibility Area(s)

1	7SE-D/CR150		Sub-Division	1	
	Location	Partly on DD210 LOT 524 and DD210 LOT 536, partly on STTSX1945 and partly on adjoining unallocated Government land			
	Responsible Lot/Party	DD219 LOT 214 &Ext Thereto	Maintenance Agent	Not Applicable	
	Remarks	Not Applicable			
2	7SE-D/CR150	Sub-Division 2			
	Location	Partly on DD210 LOT 524 and unallocated Government land	DD210 LOT 536, partly on STT	SX1945 and partly on adjoining	
	Responsible Lot/Party	DD219 LOT 221	Maintenance Agent	Not Applicable	
	Remarks	Not Applicable			
3	7SE-D/CR150		Sub-Division	3	
	Location	Partly on DD210 LOT 524 and DD210 LOT 536, partly on STTSX1945 and partly on adjoining unallocated Government land			
	Responsible Lot/Party	Lands Department	Maintenance Agent	Lands Department	
	Remarks	For enquiries about the maintenance of this slope / sub-division of the slope, please contact Maintenance Agent directly.			
4	7SE-D/CR150	Sub-Division 4			
	Location	Partly on DD210 LOT 524 and DD210 LOT 536, partly on STTSX1945 and partly on adjoining unallocated Government land			
	Responsible Lot/Party	STTSX1945	Maintenance Agent	Not Applicable	
	Remarks	Not Applicable		•	
5	7SE-D/CR150		Sub-Division	4	
	Location	Partly on DD210 LOT 524 and DD210 LOT 536, partly on STTSX1945 and partly on adjoining unallocated Government land			
	Responsible Lot/Party	DD210 LOT 536	Maintenance Agent	Not Applicable	
	Remarks	Not Applicable			
6	7SE-D/CR150		Sub-Division	5	
	Partly on DD210 LOT 524 and DD210 LOT 536, partly on STTSX1945 and partly on ad			SX1945 and partly on adjoining	
		unallocated Government land			
	Responsible Lot/Party	DD210 LOT 536	Maintenance Agent	Not Applicable	
	Remarks	Not Applicable			

The use of this report and plan is subject to the terms and conditions set out under the respective Disclaimers, Copyright Notice and Privacy Policy displayed on the Slope Maintenance Responsibility Information System webpage at http://www.slope.landsd.gov.hk/smris/disclaimer. The contents of this report and plan, including but not limited to all text, graphics, drawings, diagrams and compilation of data or other materials are protected by copyright. The users of this report and plan acknowledge that the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region is the owner of all copyright works contained in this report and plan. Any reproduction, adaptation, distribution, dissemination or making available of any copyright works contained in this report and plan to the public is strictly prohibited unless prior written authorization is obtained from the Lands Department.

7	7SE-D/CR150		Sub-Division	6
	Logotion	Partly on DD210 LOT 524 and DD210 LOT 536, partly on STTSX1945 and partly		
unallocated Government land				
Responsible Lot/PartyDD210 LOT 524Maintenance AgentNot Applie			Not Applicable	
	Remarks	Not Applicable		

- End of Report -

Notes:

(i) The location plan in Annex is for identification purposes of slope(s) only.

(ii) The slope(s) as listed in the Slope Maintenance Responsibility Report may not be shown on the location plan in Annex.

The use of this report and plan is subject to the terms and conditions set out under the respective Disclaimers, Copyright Notice and Privacy Policy displayed on the Slope Maintenance Responsibility Information System webpage at http://www.slope.landsd.gov.hk/smris/disclaimer. The contents of this report and plan, including but not limited to all text, graphics, drawings, diagrams and compilation of data or other materials are protected by copyright. The users of this report and plan acknowledge that the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region is the owner of all copyright works contained in this report and plan. Any reproduction, adaptation, distribution, dissemination or making available of any copyright works contained in this report and plan to the public is strictly prohibited unless prior written authorization is obtained from the Lands Department.


The use of this report and plan is subject to the terms and conditions set out under the respective Disclaimers, Copyright Notice and Privacy Policy displayed on the Slope Maintenance Responsibility Information System webpage at http://www.slope.landsd.gov.hk/smris/disclaimer. The contents of this report and plan, including but not limited to all text, graphics, drawings, diagrams and compilation of data or other materials are protected by copyright. The users of this report and plan acknowledge that the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region is the owner of all copyright works contained in this report and plan. Any reproduction, adaptation, distribution, dissemination or making available of any copyright works contained in this report and plan to the public is strictly prohibited unless prior written authorization is obtained from the Lands Department.

7SE-D/R46



BASIC INFORMATION

Location:	NO.55 TIN SHEK R	DAD, HING KENG SHEK VILLAGE, SAI KUNG
Registration Date:	19-12-1997	
Ranking Score (NPRS):	2 (Notional)	
Date of Formation:	pre-1977	
Date of Construction/ Modification:		
Data Source:	SIRST	
Approximate Coordinates:	Easting : 843725	Northing : 825010

CONSEQUENCE-TO-LIFE CATEGORY

Facility at Crest:	Densely-used sitting out area
Distance of Facility from Crest (m):	0
Facility at Toe:	Road/footpath with very low traffic density
Distance of Facility from Toe (m):	0.5
Consequence-to-life Category:	2
Remarks:	N/A

SLOPE PART

N/A

WALL PART

(1) Max. Height (m): 4.2 Length (m): 32 Face Angle (deg): 85

MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITY

(1) Sub Div.: 1	Private Feature	Party: DD219 Lot230	Agent: N/A	Land Cat.: 1,5a,7	Reason Code: 1	MR Endorsement Date: 04-08-1998
(2) Sub Div.: 2	Private Feature	Party: STTSX1079	Agent: N/A	Land Cat.: 1,5a,7	Reason Code: 49	MR Endorsement Date: 04-08-1998

DETAILS OF SLOPE / RETAINING WALL

Date of Inspection:	12-03-1997
Data Source:	SIRST
Slope Part Drainage:	N/A
Wall Part Drainage:	(1) Position: Toe Size(mm): 225

SLOPE PART

N/A

WALL PART



Wall Part (1)		
Type of Wall:	Wall Material: Other	s Wall Location: Retaining wall with level platform
Berm:	No. of Berms: N/A	Min. Berm Width (m): N/A
Weepholes:	Size (mm): N/A	Spacing (m): N/A

SERVICES

(1)	Utilities Type: Electricity	Size(mm): 20	Location: On crest	Remark: N/A
(2)	Utilities Type: Electricity	Size(mm): O	Location: On slope	Remark: Size cannot be determined
(3)	Utilities Type: Sewer/Drain	Size(mm): 90) Location: On slop	e Remark: N/A
(4)	Utilities Type: Water Main	Size(mm): 30	Location: On crest	Remark: N/A
(5)	Utilities Type: Water Main	Size(mm): 40	Location: On slope	Remark: N/A

CHECKING STATUS INFORMATION

N/A

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

GIU Cell Ref.:	7SE25A1			
Map Sheet Reference (1:1000):	7SE-25A			
Aerial Photos:	CN10978 (1995),	CN10979 (1	1995)	
Nearest Rainguage Station (Station Number):	Pak Kong Tsui Hang Special Area Management Centre(N50)			
Data Collected On:	12-03-1997			
Date of Construction, Subsequent Modification and Demolition:	Modification: Con	structed	Before: 1978	After: N/A
Related Reports/Files or Documents:	File/Report: LA File/Report: LA	Ref. No.: Ref. No.:	GCME5/3/8 pt6 GCME5/3/8 pt6	
Remarks:	N/A			
Follow Up Actions:	N/A			
DH-Order (To Be Confirmed with Buildings Department):	None			
Advisory Letter (To Be Confirmed with Buildings Department):	None			
LPMIS:	None			

ENHANCED MAINTENANCE INFORMATION

From Maintenance Department: (Last Updated Date: 01/08/2024)



STAGE 1 STUDY REPORT

Inspected On:
Weather:
District:

12-03-1997 Mainly Fine ME



Section No:	1-1
Height(m):	H1 : 4 , H2 : 4
Type of Toe Facility:	Road/footpath with very low traffic density
Distance from Toe(m):	0.5
Type of Crest Facility:	Densely-used sitting out area
Distance from Crest(m):	0
Consequence Category:	2
Engineering Judgement:	Р
Section No:	2-2
Type of Toe Facility:	
Distance from Toe(m):	
Type of Crest Facility:	
Distance from Crest(m):	
Consequence Category:	2
Engineering Judgement:	Р
Sign of Seepage:	Slope : N/A
	Wall : Signs of seepage
Criterion A satisfied:	Ν
Sign of Distress:	Slope : N/A Wall : Minimal(mid-portion, at toe)
Criterion D satisfied:	Ν
Non-routine maintenance required:	Ν
Note:	N/A
Masonry wall/Masonry facing:	Y
Note:	Squared rubble and boulders.
Consequence category (for critical section):	2
Observations:	N/A



CIVIL ENGINEERING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

Emergency Action Required: N Action By: N/A

ACTION TO INITIATE PREVENTIVE WORKS

Criterion A/Criterion D:	N/A
Action By:	N/A
Further Study:	Y
Action By:	Mixed

OTHER EXTERNAL ACTION

Check / repair Services:	Ν
Action By:	N/A
Non-routine Maintenance:	Ν
Action By:	N/A







CROST ARES.



Goover Vion



SLOPE INFORMATION SYSTEM GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING OFFICE CIVIL ENGINEERING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT



(7SE-D/R46)



List of Slope Maintenance Responsibility Area(s)

1	7SE-D/R46		Sub-Division	1
	Location PARTLY IN GL & PARTLY IN		N STTSX1079 E OF DD219 LO	Г230
	Responsible Lot/Party DD219 Lot230		Maintenance Agent	Not Applicable
	Remarks	Slope information being review	ed.	
2	7SE-D/R46		Sub-Division	2
	Location PARTLY IN GL & PARTLY I		N STTSX1079 E OF DD219 LO	Г230
	Responsible Lot/Party STTSX1079		Maintenance Agent	Not Applicable
	Remarks	Slope information being reviewed.		

- End of Report -

Notes:

(i) The location plan in Annex is for identification purposes of slope(s) only.

(ii) The slope(s) as listed in the Slope Maintenance Responsibility Report may not be shown on the location plan in Annex.

The use of this report and plan is subject to the terms and conditions set out under the respective Disclaimers, Copyright Notice and Privacy Policy displayed on the Slope Maintenance Responsibility Information System webpage at http://www.slope.landsd.gov.hk/smris/disclaimer. The contents of this report and plan, including but not limited to all text, graphics, drawings, diagrams and compilation of data or other materials are protected by copyright. The users of this report and plan acknowledge that the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region is the owner of all copyright works contained in this report and plan. Any reproduction, adaptation, distribution, dissemination or making available of any copyright works contained in this report and plan to the public is strictly prohibited unless prior written authorization is obtained from the Lands Department.



The use of this report and plan is subject to the terms and conditions set out under the respective Disclaimers, Copyright Notice and Privacy Policy displayed on the Slope Maintenance Responsibility Information System webpage at http://www.slope.landsd.gov.hk/smris/disclaimer. The contents of this report and plan, including but not limited to all text, graphics, drawings, diagrams and compilation of data or other materials are protected by copyright. The users of this report and plan acknowledge that the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region is the owner of all copyright works contained in this report and plan. Any reproduction, adaptation, distribution, dissemination or making available of any copyright works contained in this report and plan to the public is strictly prohibited unless prior written authorization is obtained from the Lands Department.

Appendix 4 Report of Site-specific Ground Investigation

WINFIELD ENGINEERING COMPANY

GROUND INVESTIGATION FIELD WORK REPORT

Drillhole Nos. : BH1(P) to BH3(P) Trial Pit Nos. : TP1 To TP7

G.I. Works for Lot No. 301 in D.D. 219, Hing Keng Shek, Sai Kung, N.T.

WINFIELD ENGINEERING COMPANY

Ground Investigation Works for

Lot No. 301 in D.D. 219, Hing Keng Shek,

Sai Kung, N.T.

Ground Investigation Report

CONTENT

- 1. Introduction
- 2. General Site Description
- 3. Geology
- 4. Field Work
 - 4.1 Drillholes & Trial Pits
 - 4.2 Field Tests
 - 4.3 Field Installation
 - 4.4 Groundwater Monitoring
 - **4.5 Sample Description**
- 5. Reference

FIGURES

Figure 1 – S.I. Station Location Plan

TABLES

 Table 1 – S.I. Station Co-ordinates and Ground Levels

APPENDICES

Appendix A – Drillhole Records

Appendix B - Drillhole Photographs

Appendix C - Trial Pit Records

Appendix D - Trial Pit Photographs

Appendix E - Installation Details of Piezometer/Standpipe and Response Test Record

Appendix F - Groundwater Monitoring Records

Appendix G - Checklists for Soil and Rock Description

Appendix H - Legend for Use on Exploratory Station Records

1. Introduction

Winfield Engineering Company was appointed to carry out the Ground Investigation Works for Lot No. 301 in D.D. 219, Hing Keng Shek, Sai Kung, N.T.

The scopes of works include three vertical drillholes (BH1(P) to BH3(P)) and seven trial pits (TP1 to TP7), carry out standard penetration tests and obtain rock samples and undisturded soil samples.

The ground investigation in the designated area was generally implemented in accordance with Geoguide 2: (GCO 2017): 'Guide to Site Investigation', BS1377: (BSI 1990): 'Method of test for Soils for civil engineering purposes' and the Specification for this Contract. References to other standards and publications are given in the individual sections of the report corresponding to the relevant works conducted.

This report details a brief description of the site and the procedures adopted together with the findings of the fieldwork. The fieldwork was carried out between 23rd July 2024 and 31st August 2024.

2. <u>General Site Description</u>

The site is located at Lot No. 301 in D.D. 219, Hing Keng Shek, Sai Kung, N.T. and at Hong Kong 1980 Grid co-ordinates E843730 and E843755, N824980 and N825020.

The position of the S.I. station is indicated on the Ground Investigation Plan in Figure 1.

Co-ordinates and levels of the S.I. station are shown in Table 1

3. <u>Geology</u>

Geology is with reference to the 1:20,000 scaled geological map of the area published by the Geotechnical Control Office (Sheet 8: Sai Kung Peninsula HGM20 Series: Edition 1 – 1989).

According to the investigation work, the geological strata encountered in this investigation can be summarized as follows:

- Fill
- Colluvium
- Completely decomposed TUFF
- Highly decomposed TUFF
- Moderately decomposed TUFF or better grade TUFF

4. <u>Field Work</u>

4.1 Drillholes & Trial Pits

Three vertical drillholes (BH1(P) to BH3(P)) were carried out by using conventional of hydraulic feed type rotary drilling rig which equipped with diamond and tungsten carbide bits, using water flushing medium in drilling progress.

Rotary coring with 84mm diameter (T2-101) and 61mm (TNW) double tube core barrel were used to retrieve core of rocks.

The drillholes records are shown in Appendix A.

Photographs were taken for all rotary cored materials at core boxes of drillhole, the photographs were shown in Appendix B.

Seven trial pits (TP1 to TP7) were excavated by hand tools to various depths as instructed by the Engineer on site. The trial pit was backfilled with compacted excavated materials.

The trial pit records are shown in Appendix C.

Photographs were taken of materials for trial pits, the photographs are shown in Appendix D.

4.2 Field Test

Standard Penetration Tests (SPT) were carried out in all drillholes. The tests were carried out in accordance with BS1377 (1990: Part 9) 'Methods of Test for Soils for Civil Engineering Proposes', with modifications as suggested in Geoguide 2. The SPT results are recorded in the drillhole records in Appendix A.

4.3 Field Installation

Piezometers and standpipes were installed in all drillholes (BH1(P) to BH3(P)). Response test were carried out in standpipes and piezometers to check the functioning of them. The details of installation of piezometer/standpipe and the response test result are shown in Appendix E.

4.4 Groundwater monitoring

Monitoring of groundwater levels were recorded after installation. The records are shown in Appendix F.

4.5 Sample Description

Soil and rock descriptions are in accordance with the general principles given in Geoguide 3 – Guide to Rock and Soil Descriptions (GEO, 2017). The classification and definitions of the use on the exploratory station records are attached in Appendix G and Appendix H.

5. <u>References</u>

Map HGM20(1989), Sheet 8, Edition I, Sai Kung Peninsula : Solid and Superficial Geology (1:20,000 Scale)

GEO (2000). Geological Map of Hong Kong, Series HGM 100, Hong Kong Geological Survey, Geotechnical Engineering Office, Hong Kong. (1:100,000)

GEO (2017). Guide to Site Investigation (Geoguide 2). Geotechnical Engineering Office, Hong Kong.

GEO (2017). Guide to Rock and Soil Descriptions (Geoguide 3). Geotechnical Engineering Office, Hong Kong.

Figure 1

S.I. Station Location Plan



Table 1

S.I. Station Co-ordinates & Ground Level

Winfield Engineering Company

SURVEY RECORD

S.I.	Co-ore	linates	Ground Level	Domonica
Station	Easting	Northing	(mPD)	Kemarks
BH1(P)	843743.26	825008.17	+85.58	
BH2(P)	843738.36	824997.16	+85.67	
BH3(P)	843748.26	825000.15	+85.72	
TP1	843738.47	825013.27	+85.42	
TP2	843750.35	825005.08	+85.71	
TP3	843735.19	824997.06	+85.68	
TP4	843746.37	824996.28	+85.74	
TP5	843741.22	824983.53	+85.68	
TP6	843738.05	824990.11	+85.70	
TP7	843738.35	825010.07	+85.52	

Project : Lot No. 301 in D.D. 219, Hing Keng Shek, Sai Kung, N.T.

Appendix A

Drillhole Records

	WINFIELD ENGINEERING COMPAN															CONTRACT NO.: HOLE NO.:		
	DRILLHOLE RECORD ROJECT : Lot No. 301 in D.D. 219, Hing Keng Shek, Sai Kung, N.T															SHEET : 1 OF <u>3</u> DATE : 29/7/24 TO 10/8/24		
PRC	JECT	:	Lot	No.	301	in	D.D.	219, Hin	g k	Keng Shel	r, Sai	Kung,	N.T.					
MET	HOD	:	ROT	TARY				C)-	ORDINA	TES					ROCK COREBIT : T2-101/TNW		
мас	HINE	&	NC	D. :	T	оно				E 8 N 8	43743.2 25008.1	6 7				HOLE DIA. : HX/NX		
FLUSHING MEDIUM : WATER ORIENTATION : VERTICAL														GROUND LEVEL : +85.58 mPD.				
Drilling Progress	Casing Depth/Size	Water Level/Time	Water Recovery %	Total Core Recovery %	Solid Core Recovery %	R. Q. D.	Fracture Index	Tests	No	Samples . Type Depth	Reduced Level	Depth (m)	Legend	Grade	Zone	Description		
- 29/7 	Hx								A	• 0.50	+85.58					Light greyish brown, slightly clayey silty fine to coarse SAND with gravel sized rock fragments. (FILL)		
				38					B	• 1.00 T2-101 • 1.65	+84.58	1.00				Brownish grey, angular COBBLE sized rock fragments. (COLLUVIUM)		
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $												<u>-1.85</u> 	R			No recovery (interred as COLUVIUM) Brownish grey, angular BOULDER sized rock fragments. (COOUVIUM)		
				0					1	2.50 2.85	+82.73	2.85				Brownish grey, sandy GRAVEL and COBBLE sized rock fragments. (COLLUVIUM) Greyish brown and grey, angular COBBLE sized		
				49						T2-101						rock fragments. (COLLUVIUM)		
				0						4.18 4.50	+81.40	<u>4.18</u>				Brownish grey, sandy GRAVEL and COBBLE sized rock fragments.		
				92						↓ 5.50	+80.68	<u>4.90</u> 5.50	Ř			Grey, angular BOULDER and COBBLE sized rock fragments. (COLLUVIUM)		
	6.70							50/0.03 200/0.05	3	● 6.08			0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0			Very dense, sandy GRAVEL and COBBLE sized rock fragments. (COLLUVIUM)		
	Hx			90	70	0	>20			6.70 ™₩	+78.88	6.70	· a · . · · · · · ·	IV		Moderately weak, greyish brown, highly decomposed coarse ash TUFF with very closely		
				95	89	89		各		7.20 ™₩	+/8.38	<u>-7.20</u> 	× × × × ×	III		and closely spaced, rough undulating and planar, narrow, iron stained joints. Strong, brownish grey and grey, slightly decomposed coaree, geh TLIEE with closely and		
							4.8			* 8.20			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			medium spaced, rough undulating and planar, very narrow to extremely narrow, iron stained joints, dipping at $0^{\circ}-10^{\circ}$, $20^{\circ}-30^{\circ}$, $40^{\circ}-50^{\circ}$ & cubyectical		
				97	94	83				TŃW	175 99		× × × × × ×			From 9.70m to 9.92m, moderately decomposed TUFF.		
	9.70 +75.88 9.70 95 89 80 ≥20 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1																	
	Large disturbed sample Large disturbed sample SPT liner sample U76 undisturbed sample Permeability test										Logged <u>Poon Leung</u> DATE <u>30/8/24</u>				g 1. Inspection pit was excavated to 1.00m. 2. Standpipe was installed at 8.00m.			
	U100 undisturbed sample Permeability test Image: Mazier sample A Standpipe CHECKED W.P. Chun DATE 31/8/24											э.	riez	unielei was insianed af FF.Zoff.				

	WINFIELD ENGINEERING COMPAN DRILLHOLE RECORD														CONTRACT NO.: HOLE NO.: BH1(P)
		Ι)R	lI	L	H	DL	E RI			SHEET : 2 OF 3 DATE : 29/7/24 TO 10/8/24				
PRO	JECT	• :	Lot	No.	301	in	D.D.	219, Hin	g Keng She	k, Sai	Kung,	N.T.			
MET	HOD	:	ROT	TARY	,			co	D-ORDINA	TES					ROCK COREBIT : T2-101/TNW
мас	HINE	8	NC	D. :	T	оно			E I N I	843743.2 825008.1	6 7				HOLE DIA. : HX/NX
FLUSHING MEDIUM : WATER ORIENTATION : VERTICAL															GROUND LEVEL : +85.58 mPD.
Drilling Progress	Casing Depth/Size	Water Level/Time	Water Recovery %	Total Core Recovery %	Solid Core Recovery %	R. Q. D.	Fracture Index	Tests	Samples No. Type Depth	Reduced Level	ð Depth (m)	Legend	Grade	Zone	Description
				95	89	80	5.9 >20		TNW	+74.98 +74.73	10 10.60 10.85		=		As sheet 1 of 3 From 10.60m to 10.85m, moderately decomposed
Ē				ຊາ	76	0	9.1	\$	11.20	+74.18	E- E-11.40	```` ````	II		
	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $													From 11.40m to 11.70m, highly decomposed TUFF.	
Ē															
				98	88	39	<u>>20</u> 11.8		12.60 түш	+72.98	<u>-12.60</u> 	× × × × × ×			Moderately strong, greyish brown and grey, moderately decomposed coarse ash TUFF with closely spaced, rough undulating and planar, very
				100	97	59	6.5		+ 13.40				,		narrow to extremely narrow, iron stained joints, dipping at 0°-10°, 20°-30°, 40°-50°, 60°-70° & subvertical.
				96	91	63						> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >			
				100	95	69	>20		15.88	+68.98		>`` >`` >``			
				97	94	85	12.5		16.70			<pre>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>></pre>	=		Strong, grey to dark grey, slightly decomposed coarse ash TUFF with closely and medium spaced, rough undulating and planar, very narrow to extremely narrow, iron and chlorite stained joints, dipping at 0°-10°, 30°-40° & 50°-60°.
				92	88	88	9.7		TNW			> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >			
	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $														From 19.10m to 19.40m, moderately decomposed TUFF.
	 Small disturbed sample Large disturbed sample Water sample SPT liner sample U76 undisturbed sample U100 undisturbed sample Piezometer Mazier sample A Standpipe 								LOGGED DATE CHECKE	Poon L 30/8/2 D <u>W.P.</u>	_eung24	REM	ARKS		
P/S	Image: Stand pipe Image: Stand pipe Image: Stand pipe Amage: Stand pipe P/S Piston sample														

	WINFIELD ENGINEERING COMPAN DRILLHOLE RECORD																CONTRACT NO.: HOLE NO.: BH1(P)
		Γ)R	211	L	H	JL	E]	RF	EC	ORJ)					SHEET : 3 OF 3 DATE : 29/7/24 TO 10/8/24
PRO	JECT	:	Lot	No.	301	in	D.D.	219,	Hing	, Ker	ng Shel	<, Sai	Kung,	N.T.			
мет	HOD	:	ROI	FARY	,				CO)-OF	RDINA	TES					ROCK COREBIT : T2-101/TNW
мас	HINE	&	N	D. :	T	оно					E 8 N 8	43743.2	6 7				HOLE DIA. : HX/NX
FLU	SHIN	GΜ	ED	IUN	1:	W	ATER		OR	len ⁻	ΤΑΤΙΟ	N :	VERTI	CAL			GROUND LEVEL : +85.58 mPD.
	ze	ne	*	<u>ه</u> ×	<u>و</u> %					Sai	mples		Ê				
Drilling Progress	Casing Depth/Si	Water Level∕Tir	Water Recovery	Total Col Recovery	Solid Co Recovery	R. Q. D.	Fracture Index	Tests	3	No. Tv	vne Depth	Reduced Level	Depth (r	Legend	Grade	Zone	Description
Ē				90	77	64	6.2			<u>пог т</u>	W 00 F0	+65.08	20 20 20 50	· · · ·	П		As sheet 2 of 3
Ē										-3	- 20.50	100.00	-	× ×			Moderately strong, brownish grey and grey, moderately decomposed coarse ash TUFF with very
Ē				90	62	26	>20			T	iw 			× ` × × ` ×			closely and closely spaced, rough undulating and planar, narrow to very narrow, iron stained joints, dispine at 0° 10° 30° 40° 50° 50° * 70° 80°
<u>=10/8</u> E							12.0				21.70	+63.88	21.70 E	<u>~`~</u>			End of hole at 21.70m.
E																	
Ē																	
Ē													Ē				
Ē													Ē				
Ē													<u>-</u> -				
Ē													<u> </u>				
Ē.													Ē.				
E													Ē				
Ē													Ē				
Ē													<u> </u>				
F													<u> </u>				
E													Ē				
Ē													E				
Ē													Ē				
Ē													<u> </u>				
Ē																	
E													Ē				
Ē																	
Ē													Ē				
•	Small (disturb	ed s	l ampl	e 🖌	• W	l later s	Lsample			I OGGED	Poon I	euna	REM/	ARKS	I	
‡	Large of SPT lin	disturb er sar	ed s nple	sampl	e 1		ater t tandar enetro	able dition test	t		DATE	30/8/2	4				
	U76 ur	ndistur	bed	samp	le	P	ermea	ibility tes	st			, <u>, , –</u>	Chun				
	U100 ı Mazier	ındistu sampl	irbed e	sam	iple	P A S	iezom tandni	eter tip ipe				, <u> </u>	24				
P/S	Piston	sample	е		L			r -			UNIC -		- ·				



	WINFIELD ENGINEERING COMPANY DRILLHOLE RECORD															CONTRACT NO.: HOLE NO.: BH2(P)	
		Ι	DR	II	L	H	DL	E	RI	EC	ORI	D					SHEET : 2 OF <u>3</u> DATE : 23/8/24 TO <u>31/8/24</u>
PRO	JECT	• :	Lot	No.	301	in	D.D.	219	, Hing	g Kei	ng Shel	<, Sai	Kung,	N.T.			
MET	HOD	:	ROI	FARY	,				СС	0-0		TES	_				ROCK COREBIT : T2-101/TNW
мас	HINE	8	N	D. :	T	оно					E 8 N 8	43738.3 24997.1	6 6				HOLE DIA. : HX/NX
FLU	FLUSHING MEDIUM : WATER ORIENTATION : VERTICAL														GROUND LEVEL : +85.67 mPD.		
Drilling Progress	Progress Progress A Depth/Size Water Level/Time Water Recovery % Solid Core Recovery % R. Q. D. Fracture Index									Sa No. T	mples ype Depth	Reduced Level	ồ Depth (m)	Legend	Grade	Zone	Description
	Hx 11 30			85				1.50	10.06	11	• 11 10	+74 57		a a a a a	۷		As sheet 1 of 3
	Hx							200	0.06	13 _	$3 \stackrel{\bullet}{-} 11.22 + 7.4$		<u>-11.30</u> 		V IV		Extremely weak, brownish grey, completely decomposed TUFF. (Very dense, sandy GRAVEL sized rock fragments.)
				62	45	0	NI			T -	₩ ¥- 12.80	. 70 57					Moderately weak, greyish brown and grey, highly decomposed coarse ash TUFF with very closely spaced, rough undulating and planar, narrow, ion stained joints.
				80	76	69	4.6			T -	TNW + 14.00	+/2.5/		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	I		Strong, grey, spotted with black and white, slightly decomposed coarse ash TUFF with closely and medium spaced, rough undulating and planar, very narrow to extremely narrow, iron stained joints, dipping at 0°-10° & 20°-30°.
				71	60	42	NI			T	NW 15.20	+71.27	<u>-14.40</u>	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	IV		Moderately weak, greyish brown and grey, highly decomposed coarse ash TUFF with very closely spaced, rough undulating and planar, narrow, iron stained ioints.
				65	43	19				т	NW	+71.27	E E15.75	~~~~ ~~~~			•
				95	89	85				- T	¥- 15.90			* * * * * * * * *	III		Moderately strong, grey, spotted with black and white, slightly decomposed coarse ash TUFF with closely and medium spaced, rough undulating and planar, very narrow to extremely narrow, iron
				100	87	60	9.0			- T	¥ 16.70			* * * * * * * * *			and chlorite stained joints, dipping at $0^{\circ}-10^{\circ}$, 20° -30° & 40°-50°.
				95	89	60				- T -	nw 18.00			* * * * * * * * *			
				98	94	88	4.8			T -	w 18.78	+67.37	<u>-18.30</u> 				From 18.30m to 18.72m, slightly decomposed TUFF.
				98	87	44	16.1			Т	NW 40.05			× × × ×			
Ē	100 90 52 8.6 19.65 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20																
• ‡	 Small disturbed sample Large disturbed sample SPT liner sample SPT liner sample Large disturbed sample Serreachility test 										LOGGED <u>Poon Leung</u> DATE <u>30/8/24</u>				ARKS		
	U100 i	undistur	bed irbed	samp sam	ne Iple	P P	ermea iezom	eter ti	est p		CHECKEE	W.P.	<u>Chun</u>				
₽/S	■ U100 undisturbed sample ■ Piezometer tip ■ <t< td=""><td></td><td></td></t<>																

	WINFIELD ENGINEERING COMPAN DRILLHOLE RECORD																CONTRACT NO.: HOLE NO.: BH2(P)
		Ι)R	211	L]	H	DL	E	RI	ECO	RJ	D					SHEET : 3 OF 3 DATE : 23/8/24 TO 31/8/24
PRO	JECI	• :	Lot	No.	301	in	D.D.	219,	Hing	g Keng S	Shei	k, Sai	Kung,	N.T.			
MET	HOD	:	ROI	ſARY	,				СС)–ORDI	NA	TES	_				ROCK COREBIT : T2-101/TNW
мас	HINE	8	N	Э. :	T	оно					E 8 N 8	343738.3 324997.1	6 6				HOLE DIA. : HX/NX
FLUSHING MEDIUM : WATER ORIENTATION : VERTICA													CAL			GROUND LEVEL : +85.67 mPD.	
Drilling Progress	Progress Progress Cashig Cashig Cashig Cashig Level/Time Level/Time Level/Time Level/Time Level/Time Recovery % Recovery									Sample No. Type [)epth	Reduced Level	8 Depth (m)	Legend	Grade	Zone	Description
Ē					90	52	- 8.6 >20				J.10			```			As sheet 2 of 3
Ē				54	04	JZ	7.0			TNW 2	1 10	+64.92	20.75	· · ·			From 20.75m to 21.32m, slightly decomposed
				95	86	44	>20			TNW	1.10	+64.35	21.32	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			1047.
Ē				95	80	80	4.0				2.45	+63.19	22.48	~~~ ~~~~			From 22.48m to 22.88m, slightly decomposed TUFF.
Ē							>20				3.03	102.75		~~~			
				98	90	50	3.9			TNW 	+62	+62.02	23.65 	~~~~ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	II		From 23.65m to 24.16m, slightly decomposed TUFF.
				98	90	55	10.9			TNW		+60.87	 	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~			Change ways to deale ways allochts documented
				100	100	100	3.3				5.00 6.00	+59 67	26.00				coarse ash TUFF with closely to medium spaced, rough planar, very narrow to extremely narrow, iron stained joints, dipping at 0°-10°.
	Small	disturb												PEM	ADVS		End of hole at 26.00m.
● ‡	 Small disturbed sample Water sample Large disturbed sample Water table Standard Standard 									LOGGED <u>Poon Leung</u>					ARKS		
	SPT lir U76 u	ier sai ndistur	mple bed	samp	ole	P	enetro ermec	ition tes Ibility te	DATE <u>30/8/24</u> ity test								
■ Ø P/S	U100 undisturbed sample Prezemeter tip Cl Image: Construction of the sample Prezemeter tip Cl											31/8/2	24				

	WINFIELD ENGINEERING COMPAN DRILLHOLE RECORD																CONTRACT NO.: HOLE NO.:
	DRILLHOLE RECORD ROJECT : Lot No. 301 in D.D. 219, Hing Keng Shek, Sai Kung, N.T.																SHEET : 1 DATE : 14/8/24 OF TO21/8/24
PRO	JECT	:	Lot	No.	301	in	D.D.	219,	Hin	g K	eng She	k, Sai	Kung,	N.T.			
MET	HOD	:	ROT	ARY					СС)–(ORDINA	TES					ROCK COREBIT : T2-101/TNW
мас	HINE	&	NC). :	T	оно					E A N A	843748.2 825000.1	8 5				HOLE DIA. : HX/NX
FLUSHING MEDIUM : WATER ORIENTATION : VERTICAL													GROUND LEVEL : +85.72 mPD.				
Drilling Progress	Image: Second State Image: Second State Image: Second State Image: Second State										Samples Type Depth	Reduced Level	bepth (m)	Legend	Grade	Zone	Description
	нх									A B C	0.501.001.50	+85.72					Greyish brown, silty fine to coarse SAND with gravel sized rock fragments.
				25								+82.72	-3.00				Grey, angular COBBLE sized rock fragments. (FILL)
Ē				40							3 50				Concrete		
Ē				36							TNW 5.50						Greyish brown, angular COBBLE sized rock fragments. (COLLINUM)
								50/ 200	′0.04 /0.06	1	 ↓ 4.25 • 5.10 • 5.20 	+81.47	4.25				Very dense, greyish brown, sandy GRAVEL sized rock fragments. (COLLIVIUM)
				43							5.90	+79.82	<u>5.90</u>				Light greyish brown, angular COBBLE and BOULDER sized rock fragments. (COLLUVIUM)
				50							1 0.30 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	+77.82	 				
Ē				0						2	8.40	+77.32	8.40	000 0000			Brownish grey, sandy GRAVEL and COBBLE sized rock fragments. (COLLUVIUM)
Ē							9.1				0.40	+76 77		~~~~	III		Moderately strong, greyish brown and grey, moderately decomposed coarse ash TUFF with
Ē				58	52	30	NI				TNW	170.77		~~~~	IV		closely and very closely spaced, rough undulating and planar, narrow to very narrow, iron stained ioints, dipping at 0°-10°, 20°-30°, 40°-50° &
E	Hy			67	60	37	7.7	 	L		+ 9.70	+76.02	<u>-9.70</u>	~			subvertical. From 8.95m to 9.70m, highly decomposed TUFF.
• • • • • • • • • • • • • •	 Small disturbed sample Large disturbed sample SPT liner sample U76 undisturbed sample U100 undisturbed sample Permeability test D100 undisturbed sample Piezometer tip Mazier sample Action test Standpipe P/S Piston sample 										LOGGED DATE CHECKE DATE	Leung 24 Chun 24	REMARKS - 1. Inspection pit was excavated to 1.50m. 2. Standpipe was installed at 10.00m. 3. Piezometer was installed at 11.50m				

	WINFIELD ENGINEERING COMPA															CONTRACT NO.: HOLE NO.: BH3(P)
		Ι	DR	II	L	H	DL	E R	EC					SHEET : 2 OF <u>3</u> DATE : 14/8/24 TO 21/8/24		
PRO	JECI	• :	Lot	No.	301	in	D.D.	219, Hin	g Ke	ng Shel	<, Sai	Kung,	N.T.			
MET	HOD	:	ROT	ARY	,			C	0-0	RDINA	TES					ROCK COREBIT : T2-101/TNW
мас	HINE	8	NC). :	T	оно				E 8 N 8	43748.2 25000.1	8 5				HOLE DIA. : HX/NX
FLU	FLUSHING MEDIUM : WATER ORIENTATION : VERTICAL															GROUND LEVEL : +85.72 mPD.
Drilling Progress	Drilling Progress Rater Lepth/Size Water Level/Time Water Recovery & Recovery & </td <td>imples Type Depth</td> <td>Reduced Level</td> <td>5 Depth (m)</td> <td>Legend</td> <td>Grade</td> <td>Zone</td> <td>Description</td>									imples Type Depth	Reduced Level	5 Depth (m)	Legend	Grade	Zone	Description
	Hx						7.7				+75.37	10	~~~			As sheet 1 of 3
				67	60	37	NI						> > > > > >	IV		grey, highly decomposed coarse ash TUFF with very closely and closely spaced, rough undulating and planar, narrow, iron stained joints.
	12.00			23	18	0					173 72		× × ×			
				95 88 48 10.0 Tryw +73.72 12.00 × × III												Moderately strong, greyish brown and grey, moderately decomposed coarse ash TUFF with closely and locally medium spaced, rough undukting and plagar, very parrow iron stained
Ē							>20		.	+ 13.00	+72.42	E_ F13.30		joints, dipping at 0°-10°, 30°-40°, 50°-60° & 70° -80°.		
				95	83	76	7.5						>	I		Strong, brownish grey and grey, slightly decomposed coarse ash TUFF with closely and medium to widely, locally widely to very widely
				97	97	97							<pre>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>></pre>			spacea, rough undulating and planar, very harrow to extremely narrow, iron and chlorite stained joints, dipping at 0°-10°, 20°-30°, 40°-50° & occasional subvertical.
				100	100	100	1.9			+ 15.15			> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >			
				96	96	96	-						> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >			
				100	100	93	15.0			+ 17.35	+67.87 +67.67	= = = 17.85 = 18.05	* * * * * *			From 17.85m to 18.05m, moderately decomposed
	96 96 96 96 T												* * * * * *	Ι		
				100	97	62	10.9				+66.40 +66.17	 	× × × × × ×			From 19.32m to 19.55m, moderately decomposed TUFF.
	Smc"	dietur		100	100	85	5.4	ample		19.85		⊨ ₂₀				
‡	Large	disturt	bed s	ampl	e I		later t	able .able		LOGGED	Poon L	eung	KEM	HKKS		
	SPT lir U76 u	ier sai ndistur	mple bed	samo	ole 🖥	P P	enetra ermea	tion test bility test		DATE _	ATE <u>30/8/24</u>					
	U76 undisturbed sample Permeability test U100 undisturbed sample Piezometer tip CHECKED <u>W.P. Chun</u>															
Ø ₽/S	■ U100 undisturbed sample Mazier sample P/S Piston sample U100 undisturbed sample A Standpipe DATE <u>31/8/24</u>															

	WINFIELD ENGINEERING COMPAN DRILLHOLE RECORD																CONTRACT NO.: HOLE NO.: BH3(P)
		Γ)R	lI	L.	H(JL	E	RJ	EC	ORJ	D					SHEET : 3 OF 3 DATE : 14/8/24 TO 21/8/24
PRO	JECT	:	Lot	No.	301	in	D.D.	219	, Hin	g Kei	ng Shei	k, Sai	Kung,	N.T.			
мет	HOD	:	ROT	ſARY	,				СС	0-0	RDINA	TES					ROCK COREBIT : T2-101/TNW
мас	HINE	: &	N	D. :	T	оно					E 8 N 8	43748.20 325000.1	8 5				HOLE DIA. : HX/NX
FLU	FLUSHING MEDIUM : WATER ORIENTATION : VERTICA													CAL			GROUND LEVEL : +85.72 mPD.
Samples ((E) Sign (E) Sign (E) Sign (E) Samples (E)																	
Drilling Progres	Casing Depth/	Water Level/T	Water Recover	Total C Recovei	Solid C Recover	R. 0.	Fractur Index	Te	sts	No. T	ype Depth	Reduce Level	S Depth	Legend	Grade	Zone	Description
Ē				100	100	85				T			<u>20</u> E	~~~~			As sheet 2 of 3
					<u> </u>	<u> </u>	5.4			-	+ 20.85			× ×			
				100	96	77				 T	NW	+64.17	21.55	× ×			From 21 55m to 21 95m, moderately decomposed
E 21/8											22.08	+63.87	21.85	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~		-	TUFF.
													Ē				End of hole at 22.08m.
Ē																	
Ē																	
Ē																	
Ē																	
Ē																	
Ē													Ē				
Ē													Ē				
Ē													Ē				
Ē																	
Ē													E				
Ē													Ē				
Ē													Ē				
Ē													Ē				
Ē																	
Ē																	
Ē													E				
Ē													E				
Ē																	
•	 Small	disturb	ed s	lsampl	e 🔺	 ► ₩	 /ater :	 sample	,	L		Poon		REM	ARKS		
‡	Large SPT lin	disturb	ed s	ampl	e 🔳	Z W L S	later 1 tanda	table rd	ect		LOGGED	30/8/2	<u>4</u>				
	U76 ui	ndistur	bed	samp	ile	, р Б Р	'ermec	bility	test		DATE _						
	U100	undistu	irbed	sam	iple	P A	iezom	eter ti	р		CHECKED) <u>W.P.</u>	<u>Chun</u>				
P/S	Piston	sampl	e		Ĉ	ב S	tandpi	pe			DATE _	JI/8/2	<u> </u>				

Appendix B

Drillhole Photographs



DRILLHOLE NO. ABH1(P) BOX 1 FO 4



DRILLHOLE NO. ABH1(P) BOX 2 OF 4



DRILLHOLE NO. ABH1(P) BOX 3 FO 4



DRILLHOLE NO. ABH1(P) BOX 4 OF 4



DRILLHOLE NO. ABH2(P) BOX 1 FO 4



DRILLHOLE NO. ABH2(P) BOX 2 OF 4


DRILLHOLE NO. ABH2(P) BOX 3 FO 4



DRILLHOLE NO. ABH2(P) BOX 4 OF 4



DRILLHOLE NO. ABH3(P) BOX 1 FO 3



DRILLHOLE NO. ABH3(P) BOX 2 OF 3



DRILLHOLE NO. ABH3(P) BOX 3 FO 3

Appendix C

Trial Pit Records

Location: Lot No. 301 in D.D. 219, Hing Keng Shek, Sau Kung, N.T. Trial Pit No.: TP1 Sheet 1 **of** 1 Poon Leung Excavated: ______23-7-2024 Logged by: Poon Date: 27-7-2024 Hand Dug Excavation method: . **Coordinates: E** 843738.47 N 825013.27 Date: _ Depth (m) Face B: Samples Face A: Face C: Face D: & Test 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 width: width: width: width: \mathbf{m} \mathbf{m} m \mathbf{m} Datum line +85.42 mPD 0.00 ৲ ^ ব 4 **``** ~ 4 **`** ~ 4 ~ 4 4 4 'لا d 3 U76 0.50-1.00-End of Pit at 0.80m. 1.50 2.00 2.50 3.00 3.50 4.00 4.50 5.00-**Remarks**: Legend Description Grade Plan (not to scale) Þ 🖌 🗸 🕩 Concrete slab Firm to stiff, yellowish brown, sandy SILT with gravel and cobble sized rock fragments. (COLLUVIUM) Light greyish and yellowish brown, angular and subangular BOULDER and COBBLE sized rock fragments. (COLLUVIUM) D С Plate bearing test Small disturbed sample 1 • U Large disturbed sample Insitu density test m :::: Moisture content test Water sample Photograph Undisturbed sample hor. Seepage 3 ò Bulk sample

Undisturbed sample ver.

 $\overline{}$

Block sample

Location:	Lot No.	301 in D.D.	219, Hing	Keng	Shek, Sai	Kung, N.	<u>r. </u>	Trial Pit	No.: TI	22	Sheet	. 1 o:	f 1	
Logged by Date:	7: <u>Poon</u> 27-7-2024	Leung	Exc Coo	avatio rdina	on metho tes: E_	1: 843750.3	Hand 15	1 Dug N8250	005.08	1	Excavated Backfill: _	: <u>24-7-</u> 29-7-20	-2024)24	_
Samples & Test	Depth (m)	Face A: width:	1.50	m	Face B: width:	1.50	m	Face C: width:	1.50	m	Face D: width:	1.50	m	-
	0.00— _ _	Datum lin	e +85.71	mPD	A A A A A A	م م م م	e d , e			4 4	<u>र्</u> अस्ति के विक् र	 <!--</th--><th></th><th>_</th>		_
U76	 0.50 													_
	1.00	End of Pit	at 1.00m.	२	BOULDER	1.0	0m –				1.00m			-
	- - 1.50 - -	-												_
	- 2.00 -	•						•						_
	_ 2.50— _						-							_
	- - 3.00 -	-											-	_
	- - 3.50						-						-	_
	- - 4.00						-							_
	- - - 4.50						-						-	_
													-	
Remarks	5.00	1						1						_
Legend		Desc	ription				Grade		Pla	n (not	t to scale	e)		-
	Surface cl	hannel slab										Z-		
	Concrete													
	Loose to sandy GR/ fragments	medium den AVEL and CO . (FILL)	se, grey a BBLE sized	nd gre d conc	yish brown, rete and ro	ock			Ври	LDER	urface chai	nnel		
	Medium de coarse SA	ense, light g ND with grav	reyish brov vel sized r	vn, sliç ock fro	ghtly silty fi agments. (F	ne to ILL)			D Co	ncrete	R			
								⊥ Plate I	(bearina test		• •	imall disturb	ed sample	
								U Insitu m Moistuu III Photog ■ Undistu Undistu	density test re content tes graph urbed sample urbed sample	st hor. ver.		arge disturb later sample seepage Bulk sample Block sample	ed sample	

Location:	Lot No.	301 in D.D.	219, Hing Ke	ng	Shek, Sai Kı	ung, N.T.	-	Trial Pit	No.:	TP3	Sheet	1	of 1	
Logged by	Poon	Leung	Excava	tio	n method:		— I Hanc	l Dug		Excavated: 21-8-2024				
Date:	23-8-202	.4	Coordi	nat	.es: E84	43735.19	<u> </u>	997.06		Backfill: _	2-9-2	2024		
Samples & Test	Depth (m)	Face A: width:	1.50	m	Face B: width:	1.50	m	Face C: width:	1.50	m	Face D: width:	1.50	m	1
	0.00—	Datum line	e +85.68 m	PD	A . A		A	(M X	X	* * * * * * * *	A	A	<u> </u>
1176	-			$\overset{``}{\boxtimes}$										8
	-			X										
	0.50													E
	-	End of Pit (at 0.50m.				_							E
	1.00	-												F
	_	-					_							E
	 1.50—	-												
	-						_							F
	2 00						_							E
							_							E
	-	-					_							E
	2.50— _	-												
	-						_							F
	3.00-						-							E
	-						_							F
	- 3.50—	-												E
	-	1					_							F
	4 00]					_							E
							_							
	_	-					_							
	4.50— _	1												-
	-	1					_							F
	5.00-													
Remarks:														
Legend		Desc	ription				Grade		1	Plan (n	ot to scale	.)		

Legend	Description	Grade	Plan (not to scale)
	Concrete slab		
	Medium dense, reddish pink, slightly clayey silty fine to medium SAND with gravel and occasional cobble sized rock fragments and rootlets. (FILL)		
	Light greyish brown and pink, angular and subangular BOULDER and COBBLE sized rock fragments. (COLLUVIUM)		
			С
			L Plate bearing test U Insitu density test Moisture content test Photograph Undisturbed sample hor. Undisturbed sample ver. Block sample

Location:	Lot No.	ot No. 301 in D.D. 219, Hing Keng Shek, Sai Ku							Trial Pit No.: TP4					Sheet 1 of 1			
Logged by Date:	y: <u>Poon</u> 27-7-2024	Leung	Ex	cavatio	on m tes:	ethod	l:	<u>Hanc</u> 137	l Dug	824996	.28		Excavate Backfill:	d: <u>2</u> 29-	4-7-2 7-202	2024 4	_
Samples & Test	Depth (m)	Face A: width:	1.50	m	Fa	ce B: dth:	2.00	m	Fac	e C: th:	1.50	m	Face D width:	: 2.	00	m	
	0.00-	Datum lin	.e +85.74	mPD	0.35m											0.35m	
	-					₹ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	م <u>م</u> کر م مرکب کل	<u> م</u> لا کر ک کر کر کر		্ৰু শ্ব ্ৰু ইতিত্বত	\$~ \$ `\$	× ۲ ک مهر د	♠ () 、	⊷`\ کۍ گر	~ ()		Ł
1170	-													***			
076	0.50		$\begin{array}{c} \Delta \ \Delta $														÷
	-				\mathbb{X}	⋘										***	
	1.00			BOU	LDER	×				BOXLDE	R						F
	-		1							,							E
	1.50-	End of Pit	at 1.10m	1.				_									L
	-	-						_									F
	-	-						-									F
	2.00	-															F
	-	1						-									F
	2.50-																E
	-	-						_									F
	3.00	-															Ł
	-	-						_									F
	-	-						-									F
	3.50	-															F
	-							_									E
	4.00	-															╞╴
	-	-						_									F
	4.50	-															È_
	-	-						_									F
	5.00-							_									Ē
Remarks	5.00																
Legend		Des	cription					Grade			Pla	n (n	ot to scal	e)			
	Surface c	hannel														+-	
	Concrete	slab												2-		1	
	Medium c	lense, grey,	sandy GR	AVEL ar	nd CO	BBLE s	sized					A					
	rock and Medium d	concrete fro	agments. sh brown.	(FILL)	y clav	ey siltv	y fine				во		OULDER SURF	ace cł	nannel		
	to coarse	SAND with	gravel siz	ed rock	< frag	ments.	(FILL)			D		×	В				
	GRAVEL a	nd COBBLE s	se, light sized rock	greyisn fragmo	ents.	, sand (FILL)	iy			e			DEF				
										k	~~~~	C C	XXX				
									⊥ Մ m 	Plate bear Insitu dens Moisture c Photograpl Undisturbe	ring test sity test content te h d sample	st hor.	•	Small o Large o Water s Seepag Bulk so	disturbed disturbed sample e ımple	samp samp	ie Ie
										undisturbe	a sample	ver.		Block s	ample		

Location:	Lot No.	301 in D.D.	Shek, Sai K	ung, N.1		Trial Pit	: No.: '	FP5	Sheet	t 1 of	? 1					
Logged by Date:	y: <u>Poon</u> 23-8-202	Leung 24	E3	cavatic oordina	on method tes: E_8	: 	Hanc 2	IDug N824	1983.53		Excavated: 21-8-2024 Backfill: 2-9-2024					
Samples & Test	Depth (m)	Face A: width:	1.50	m	Face B: width:	1.50	m	Face C width:	1.50	m	Face D: width:	1.50	m			
		Datum lin	e +85.68	8 mPD												
	0.00—					<u> </u>										
	0.50		3			<u> 3</u>			X 3 X X X			₩3₩₩				
1176	- 0.50															
	-	 	<u>}</u> 50		BOULDER Y	<u>+</u> 1 + b+ i	히구하	a - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -	BOULDER	+ + - - - - - - - - -						
	1.00-	End of Pit	at 0.80r	n									Ę_			
			0.001				_						E			
	-						-						E			
	1.50—															
							_						F			
		-					_						E			
	2.00-	1											Ŀ			
	-	-					-						F			
	-						_						F			
	2.50—	-											F			
	-	-					_						E			
	3.00-						_						E			
	- 3.00						_						F			
							-						F			
	3.50—	-											E_			
							_						E			
							-						-			
	4.00-															
	-						_						F			
							_						E			
	4.50-												E			
	-						-						-			
	-						_						F			
	5.00-	1														
Kemarks:	:	~					0			(-)				
Legend	Medium de	Desc ense, light ar	eription revish bro	own, slia	htly clavev s	silty	Grade		Pl	an (n	ot to scal	e)				
	fine to me	edium SAND	with gray	vel sized	rock fragm	ents										
	Firm, vello	wish brown a	and pink.	sliahtlv	clayey sand	ly SILT I				А			-7			
	with grave	l sized rock	fragmen	ts. (FILL)	.,							_			
	Loose to r sandy GRA	medium dens .VEL and COE	e, brown BBLE size	iish grey ed rock	, slightly silt and brick	y				30ULDER 入						
	fragments.	(FILL)							BOULDER							
<u> </u>	⊦irm, yello with grave	wish brown o I sized rock	and pink, fragmen	slightly ts and r	clayey sand ootlets.	iy SILT										
┝╶╬┙╷┾╻╝╷┝┼┥╷ ╋┥╶╴┩┱╷┿╋┥┰┙	(COLLUVIUN	M)								С						
								⊥ Plate	bearing test		• :	Small disturbe	ed sample			
								ີ U Insitu ກາ Moist	density test ure content t	est		_arge disturbe Vater sample	ed sample			
								Photo Photo	ograph turbed sampl	e hor.	₹ 2	seepage Bulk sample				
								Undis	turbed sampl	e ver.		Block sample				

Location:	Lot No.	301 in D.D.	219, Hin	g Keng	Shek, Sai ł	Kung, N.T	·	Trial Pit	No.:	TP6	Sheet	. 1 o t	f 1		
Logged by Date:	Poon 23-8-202	Leung 4	Ex Co	cavatio	on method tes: E	l: 843738.0	Hand 5	l Dug N82 4	990.11		Excavated: <u>21-8-2024</u> Backfill: <u>2-9-2024</u>				
Samples & Test	Depth (m)	Face A: width:	1.50	m	Face B: width:	1.50	m	Face C: width:	1.50	m	Face D: width:	1.50	m		
	0.00—	Datum lin	e +85.70) mPD	A () A (<u> </u>	eid	1	ধ, শ ক ব	্ৰি ধাইট	4. d) × × d) × .	<u>م م</u>	<u>ن</u> ه: ۲		
U76	-														
	 0.50—														
	-					2020	<u>~~~</u> ~		2220						
	1.00-	End of Pit	at 0.70m	n.											
	-						-						-		
	1.50— -														
	-						-								
	2.00— -												-		
	-						-						Ē		
	2.50— 														
	-						-						F		
	3.00												Ē		
	- - 3 50						_								
							-						F		
	- - 4.00												Ē		
							-								
	_ 4.50—												-		
	-						-						Ē		
	5.00-														
Remarks	:	n	mintion			T	Grade		Ŧ		at to cool	<u></u>			
	Concrete	slab	eription				Grade		r	nan (n	ot to scale	*)			
	Medium de coarse SA	nse, reddish ND with grav	n brown c vel and o	ind pink, ccasiona	, silty fine Il cobble siz	to zed					-		- >		
	rock fragn	nents and ro ish brown a	nd pink, s	TLL) slightly (clayey sandy	y SILT				Ŵ					
	Firm, redd		fraamont	ts. (COLI	LUVIUM)						Б				
ו דנ דנ י	Firm, redd with grave Light greyi	l sized rock	nd pink, o	angular	BOULDER si	zed				r vr	₩ T				
	Firm, redd with grave Light greyi rock fragn	l sized rock sh brown ar nents. (COLL	nd pink, c .UVIUM)	angular	BOULDER si	zed									
-6-6-	Firm, redd with grave Light greyi rock fragn	l sized rock sh brown ar nents. (COLL	nd pink, o UVIUM)	angular	BOULDER si	zed				c					
	Firm, redd with grave Light greyi rock fragn	I sized rock sh brown ar nents. (COLL	nd pink, c UVIUM)	angular	BOULDER si	zed		⊥ Plate U Insitu m Moi≏t	bearing tes density tes	C c		imall disturb	ed sample ed sample		

Location: Lot No. 301 in D.D. 219, Hing Keng Shek, Sai Kung, N.T. Trial Pit No.: TP7 Sheet 1 **of** 1 Poon Leung Excavated: ______23-7-2024 Hand Dug Excavation method: _ N 825010.07 Backfill: 29-7-2024 Coordinates: E 843738.35 Depth Face B: Samples Face A: Face C: Face D: & Test (m) 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 width: width: width: width: m \mathbf{m} m \mathbf{m} Datum line +85.52 mPD 0.00 ্ 🐴 4 🗸 🎽 🕅 4 ∽ ≬ **A** (1 7 4 :4 •₽<u>·</u>₽ Þ, Ż 2 4 þ. 4 ÷ Þ. ₽., Þ. . o ,o U76 d' 0.50o' ö. ò `o ò 'n. o ò ø 0 ,ó o 1.00 End of Pit at 1.00m. ø6.4mm G.I. pipe 1.50 2.00 2.50 3.00 3.50 4.00-4.50 5.00 **Remarks**: Legend Description Grade Plan (not to scale) Concrete slab 4 Medium dense to dense, yellowish brown and pink, slightly silty, sandy GRAVEL and COBLE sized rock fragments. (COLLUVIUM) 'n + Z 0 Light greyish and yellowish brown, angular and subangular BOULDER and COBBLE sized rock fragments. (COLLUVIUM) D С Plate bearing test Small disturbed sample 1 • ប Insitu density test Large disturbed sample

Moisture content test

Undisturbed sample hor.

Undisturbed sample ver.

Photograph

Water sample

Bulk sample

Block sample

Seepage

3

è

 $\overline{}$

Appendix D

Trial Pit Photographs





TRIAL PIT NO. TP1 FACE A



TRIAL PIT NO. TP1 FACE B



TRIAL PIT NO. TP1 FACE C



TRIAL PIT NO. TP1 FACE D



TRIAL PIT NO. TP1 FACE BOTTOM



TRIAL PIT NO. TP2 FACE A



TRIAL PIT NO. TP2 FACE B



TRIAL PIT NO. TP2FACE C



TRIAL PIT NO. TP2 FACE D



TRIAL PIT NO. TP2 FACE BOTTOM



TRIAL PIT NO. TP3 FACE A



TRIAL PIT NO. TP3 FACE B



TRIAL PIT NO. TP3FACE C



TRIAL PIT NO. TP3 FACE D



TRIAL PIT NO. TP3 FACE BOTTOM



TRIAL PIT NO. TP4 FACE A



TRIAL PIT NO. TP4 FACE B



TRIAL PIT NO. TP4 FACE C



TRIAL PIT NO. TP4 FACE D



TRIAL PIT NO. TP4 FACE BOTTOM



<image><image><page-footer>



TRIAL PIT NO. TP5 FACE C



TRIAL PIT NO. TP5 FACE D



TRIAL PIT NO. TP5 FACE BOTTOM



TRIAL PIT NO. TP6 FACE A



TRIAL PIT NO. TP6 FACE B



TRIAL PIT NO. TP6 FACE C



TRIAL PIT NO. TP6 FACE D



TRIAL PIT NO. TP6 FACE BOTTOM



TRIAL PIT NO. TP7 FACE A



TRIAL PIT NO. TP7 FACE B



TRIAL PIT NO. TP7 FACE C



TRIAL PIT NO. TP7 FACE D



TRIAL PIT NO. TP7 FACE BOTTOM

Appendix E

Installation Details of Piezometer/Standpipe

& Response Test Records

PIEZOMETE	R/STANDP	PIPE DETA	IL AI	ND RE	SPON	SE T	EST	r re	ECO	RD SHEE
Project : Lot No	o. 301 in D.D. 2	219, Hing Keng	Shek, S	Sai Kung,	N.T.					
Drillhole No.	BH1(P)			Date o	f Test	: 1	2-8-	-2024		
Ground Level	: +85.58	mPl	D.	Initial	Water	Level	:	3.88	m.	(Piezomete
Depth of Piez	ometer :	11.20 1	n.	Initial	Water	Level	:	3.92	m.	(Standpipe
Depth of Stan	dpipe :	8.00 n	n.	Tested	By :	Ma				
Time Elapsed	Depth From T (1	of Water op of Pipe m.)	Dept Grou	h Below and Level	l				Co	ver
(minutes)	Piezometer	Standpipe	0	.00 m.	P. 1	र्ग -				P
0.00	0.00	0.00	1		e x			'	♦	7
0.25	0.32	0.62]		4.4	↓ ↓ ^ ∢ ↓	<u>ک</u>			₹
0.50	0.55	1.18	1		<u>ک</u> بر ا					<u>.∱</u> ∽Drain Piu
0.75	0.81	1.68]						c c	
1.00	0.98	2.05	1	.00 m.						Bentonite Frout
2.00	1.41	3.25	1						19)mm.ø
3.00	1.73	3.92]				•••• •••			erforated
4.00	2.02		1						Р.	v.C. Pipe
5.00	2.33]				000 000 000		•	— Filter
6.00	2.58			<u>.00 m.</u>			°°°		•	
7.00	2.79			.50 m.						
8.00	3.05		9	.00 m.				<u>//////</u>	19)mm.ø
9.00	3.33		1						P .	V.C. Pipe
10.00	3.52									Cement/
15.00	3.88		9	.70 m.					G	Frout
									B	entonite
				<u>0.20 m.</u>				<u>//////</u>	; 50	eal
							。 。 。			Filter
									F	Piezometer
			1	1.20 m.					. 1	ip
			1	1.70 m.				777777		
			1	2.20 m						entonite eal
									C	cement/
										Bentonite Frout
			$\frac{2}{(\text{Ref})}$	<u>1.70 m.</u>	Hole)]	
					1016)					
DEMADKC	•									

REMARKS :

PIEZOMETE	R/STANDP	PIPE DETAI	[L AN]	D RE	SPON	SE T	EST RI	ECORD SHEE	т		
Project : Lot No	o. 301 in D.D. 2	219, Hing Keng S	Shek, Sai	i Kung,	N.T.						
Drillhole No.	BH2(P)		I	Date o	f Test	: 2.	-9-2024				
Ground Level	: +85.67	mPI	D. I	nitial	Water	Level	: 8.58	m. (Piezomet	ter)		
Depth of Piez	ometer :	15.40 r	n. I	nitial	Water	Level	: 8.53	m. (Standpip	e)		
Depth of Stan	dpipe :	10.00 n	n. 7	rested	By :	Ma					
Time Elapsed (minutes)	Depth From T (;	of Water op of Pipe m.)	Depth Groun	Below d Level	l			—Cover			
	Piezometer	Standpipe		<u> </u>							
0.00	0.00	0.00			Þ.	ו.					
0.25	0.31	0.69			4.	4 - 4 -					
0.50	0.57	1.22						Drain Pi	ipe		
0.75	0.79	1.78						Cement/			
1.00	1.05	2.26	1.0	0 m.			••••	Grout			
2.00	1.87	3.33						19mm.ø			
3.00	2.46	4.02						P.V.C. Pipe			
4.00	3.00	4.87									
5.00	3.48	5.36						Filter			
6.00	3.91	5.87	$\frac{10.}{10.}$	<u>00 m.</u> 50 m.				•			
7.00	4.30	6.26									
8.00	4.73	6.68	11.	<u>00 m.</u>				19mm.ø			
9.00	4.98	7.01				2.5 - 2.5 -		T P.V.C. Pipe			
10.00	5.19	7.38						Cement/			
15.00	5.98	8.14	13.	90 m.				Grout			
20.00	6.71	8.53		10				Bentonite			
25.00	7.44		<u> </u>	<u>40 m.</u>							
30.00	8.02							Filter			
45.00	8.58							Piezometer			
			15.	40 m.			0	Tip			
			15.	90 m.		/////	<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	•			
			16.	<u>40 m.</u>				Bentonite Seal			
			22.	<u>08 m.</u>				Cement/ Bentonite Grout			
			(Bott	om of	Hole)						
REMARKS	•	1	<u> </u>								
PIEZOMETE	R/STANDP	PIPE DETAI	IL AN	D RES	SPON	SE T	EST	RE	CO	RD S	SHEET
---	-----------------------	-------------------------------	---------------	---------------------	----------------------	--	---	--------------	-------------	------------------------	-----------
Project : Lot No. 301 in D.D. 219, Hing Keng Shek, Sai Kung, N.T.											
Drillhole No.	BH3(P)			Date o	f Test	: 2	2-8-3	2024			
Ground Level	: +85.72	mPI) .	Initial	Water	Level	•	8.90	m.	(Piez	zometer
Depth of Piezometer : 11.50 m.				Initial	Water	Level	: (8.88	m.	(Star	ndpipe)
Depth of Stan	dpipe :	10.00 n	n.	Tested	By :	Ma					
Time Elapsed	Depth From T (:	of Water op of Pipe m.)	Depti Grou	h Below nd Level					Cov	ver	
	Piezometer	Standpipe	0.	<u>00 m.</u>		<u>ال</u>		, 			
0.00	0.00	0.00			<u>`</u> ≙`` `≥`.	4			\$		
0.25	0.29	0.58			4	1 * 4 ;		4.4		έ. 	
0.50	0.58	0.92			<u>· D · </u>			4		<u>∴⊳</u> ∽Dr	ain Pipe
0.75	0.72	1.47							C	emen	t/
1.00	0.93	1.86	1.	00 m.					G H	enton rout	ite
2.00	1.75	3.01							19	mm.ø	
3.00	2.60	3.92							pe pe	rforat	ed
4.00	3.42	4.79							г.	V.C. F	Ipe
5.00	4.03	5.55								— Filte	er
6.00	4.68	6.28									
7.00	5.17	6.89						,			
8.00	5.55	7.50							19	mm.ø	
9.00	5.90	8.12]						- P.	V.C. P	ipe
10.00	6.28	8.61									
15.00	7.34	8.88	10).00 m.					8		
20.00	7.82								B	entoni	te
25.00	8.34).50 m.				<u>/////</u>	50	eal	
30.00	8.70								F	Filter	
45.00	8.90								P	iezom	eter
] 11	l.50 m.					T	ʻip	
			12	2.00 m.		······································	///////////////////////////////////////	7/////	5 5		
			19	250 m						entoni eal	te
				III.		(///					
			22	2.08 m					C B G	ement enton rout	t/ ite
			(Bot	tom of	Hole)	<u>L</u>		×	J		

REMARKS :

Appendix F

Groundwater Monitoring Records

Project : Lot No. 301 in D.D. 219, Hing Keng Shek, Sai Kung, N.T.

RECORD OF WATER LEVEL READING

Drillhole No.		BH	1(P)			BH	2(P)			BH3	3(P)	
Date of Installation		10-8.	-2024			31-8-	2024			21-8-	2024	
Ground Level (mPD)		-8;	5.58			+85	.67			+85	:72	
Type of Installation	Stan	dpipe	Piezo	meter	Stand	dpipe	Piezo	meter	Stanc	dpipe	Piezo	meter
Installation Depth (m)	8.	00	11.	.20	10.	00.	15.	.40	10	00	11	50
Date	Water Level Below G.L.	Elevation of Water Level										
12-8-2024	3.92	+81.66	3.88	+81.70								
13-8-2024	3.98	+81.60	3.95	+81.63	ı	ı	ı	ı		ı	ı	ı
14-8-2024	4.00	+81.58	3.99	+81.59	'	'	1	'				
15-8-2024	4.02	+81.56	4.00	+81.58	'	'		'	-	-	-	-
16-8-2024	4.04	+81.54	4.02	+81.56	'	'	1	'				
17-8-2024	4.03	+81.55	4.00	+81.58	'	'		'	-	-	-	-
19-8-2024	4.01	+81.57	3.97	+81.61	'	'	1	'	-	-	-	-
20-8-2024	4.00	+81.58	3.95	+81.63	'	'	1	'				
21-8-2024	4.00	+81.58	3.97	+81.61	'	'		'				
22-8-2024	3.99	+81.59	3.98	+81.60	'	'	1	'	8.88	+76.84	8.90	+76.82
23-8-2024	3.98	+81.60	3.97	+81.61	ı	1	ı	ı	8.89	+76.83	8.91	+76.81
24-8-2024	4.03	+81.55	4.01	+81.57	'	'		'	8.90	+76.82	8.94	+76.78
26-8-2024	4.03	+81.55	4.02	+81.56	'	'		'	8.91	+76.81	8.93	+76.79
27-8-2024	4.02	+81.56	4.00	+81.58	'	'		'	8.91	+76.81	8.92	+76.80
28-8-2024	4.00	+81.58	3.97	+81.61	'	'		'	68.8	+76.83	8.90	+76.82
29-8-2024	3.98	+81.60	3.95	+81.63	'	'		'	8.87	+76.85	8.89	+76.83
30-8-2024	4.00	+81.58	3.98	+81.60	'	'		'	88.8	+76.84	8.87	+76.85
31-8-2024	3.99	+81.59	3.96	+81.62	'	'		'	88.8	+76.84	8.89	+76.83
2-9-2024	4.03	+81.55	4.02	+81.56	8.53	+77.14	8.58	+77.09	06.8	+76.82	8.91	+76.81
3-9-2024	4.05	+81.53	4.03	+81.55	8.55	+77.12	8.59	+77.08	8.92	+76.80	8.93	+76.79
4-9-2024	4.03	+81.55	4.00	+81.58	8.57	+77.10	8.60	+77.07	8.91	+76.81	8.90	+76.82
5-9-2024	4.02	+81.56	4.01	+81.57	8.56	+77.11	8.60	+77.07	06.8	+76.82	8.88	+76.84
6-9-2024	3.98	+81.60	3.95	+81.63	8.55	+77.12	8.57	+77.10	8.86	+76.86	8.87	+76.85
7-9-2024	3.99	+81.59	3.92	+81.66	8.51	+77.16	8.53	+77.14	8.83	+76.89	8.85	+76.87
9-9-2024	4.00	+81.58	3.96	+81.62	8.54	+77.13	8.56	+77.11	8.87	+76.85	8.89	+76.83

Appendix G

Checklists for Soil and Rock Description

SOIL DESCRIPTION

For the preparation of drillhole logs, the soil description may report the following information as appropriate in the order indicated:

Soil Strength (Compactness & consistency)

Colour

÷

Weathering

Soil Name

Other qualifying remarks

Additional Geological Information

The following descriptions were achieved from GUIDE TO ROCK AND SOIL DESCRIPTIONS (GEOGUIDE 3)

I) Soil Strength (Compactness & Consistency)

Soil Type	Term	Identification
Very Coarse	Loose	By Inspection of voids & particle packing in the field (from trial pits only)
(COBBLES & BOULDERS)	Dense	
	Very loose	SPT 'N' value 0-4
	Loose	SPT 4-10; can be excavated with spade;
Coarse (SANDS &	Medium dense	SPT 10-30
GRAVELS)	Dense	SPT 30-50; requires pick for excavation;
	Very dense	SPT > 50
	Very soft	Undrained shear strength (USS) < 20kPa; exudes between
		fingers when squeezed in hand.
	Soft	USS 20-40 kPa; moulded by light finger pressure.
Fine (CLAYS & SILTS)	Firm	USS 40-75 kPa; can be moulded by strong finger pressure.
	Stiff	USS 75-150 kPa; cannot be moulded by finger, can be
		indented by thumb.
	Very stiff or hard	USS > 150 kPa; can be indented by thumbnail.

Terms applicable only to TRANSPORTED SOILS. For soils derived from insitu rock weathering, record actual values of quantitative tests as part of the description, where appropriate.

II) Colour

Parameter	Terms
Value	Light Dark
Chroma	Pinkish, Reddish. Yellowish, Orangish, Brownish, Greenish, Bluish, Purplish, Greyish
Hue	Pink, Red. Yellow. Orange, Brown, Green, Blue, Purple, White, Grey, Black.

For uniform colour distribution, choose a hue, supplemented by a value and / or chroma if necessary. For non-uniform distribution, repeat this procedure using one of the following descriptors: spotted, mottled, dappled, streaked, striped (e.g. light yellowish brown mottled with red) State whether sample was wet or dry when described.

III) Weathering

Soils Derived from In-situ Weathering of Rocks

There are two main types: saprolites (rock texture/structure retained) and residual soils (rock texture/structure completely destroyed).

Describe state of weathering in accordance with item 4 for rock description (see Rock Description).

Sedimentary (Transported) Soils

Coarse soils: Describe overall discolouration of soil and degree of decomposition of gravel and larger particles. Also note any signs of disintegration of large particles where apparent.

IV) Soil Name

A) Basic Soil Types

Soil Type	Particle Sizes	(mm)	Identification
BOULDERS	-	> 200	Only seen complete in pits or exposures. Often
COBBLES	-	60-200	difficult to recover from boreholes
	Coarse	20–60	Easily visible to naked eye; particle shape and grading can be described.
GRAVELS	Medium	6-20	Well-graded: wide range of grain sizes.
	Fine	2-6	Poorly graded: not well-graded (split further into uniform or gap-graded).
	Coarse	0.6-2	
SANDS	Medium	0.2-0.5	Visible to naked eye: very little or no cohesion: grading can be described.
	Fine	0.06-0.2	Maybe well graded or poorly-graded (uniform or gap-graded) as for gravel.
	Coarse	0.02-0.06	Only coarse silt barely visible to naked eye:
SILTS	Medium	0.006-0.02	exhibits little plasticity and marked dilatancy:
	Fine	0.002-0.006	slightly granular or silky to the touch. Disintegrates in water, lumps dry quickly possesses cohesion but can be powdered easily between fingers. Dry lumps can be broken by hand but not
CLAYS	-	< 0.002	powdered between fingers. Disintegrates in water more slowly than silts: smooth to the touch: exhibits plasticity but no dilatancy: sticks to the fingers and dries slowly: shrinks appreciably on drying, usually showing cracks. These properties more noticeable with increasing plasticity.
ORGANIC CLAYS, SILTS OR SANDS	-	Varies	Contains much organic vegetable matter. Often has a noticeable smell and changes colour on oxidation.
PEATS	-	Varies	Predominantly plant remains: usually dark brown or black in colour, often with distinctive smell: low bulk density.

B) Composite Soil Types (Mixtures of Basic Types)

Principal	Terminology	Term for	Term for Secondary		of Secondary
Soil Type	Sequence	Constitu	ent		Constituent
Very Coarse	Secondary	With occ	casional		< 5
(BOULDERS &	Constituents (finer				
COBBLES)	material) 🔺	With sor	ne		5-20
(> 50% of	After principal	With mu	ich		20-50
soil > 60mm)					
Coarse	Secondary	Slight	(silty, clayey or silty/clayey)	*	< 5
(GRAVELS &	constituents before	-	(silty, clayey or silty/clayey)	۲	5-15
SANDS)	principal (excluding	Very	(silty, clayey or silty/clayey)	-	15-35
	gravel, cobbles &		AND/OR		
	boulders) 🕇	Slightly	(sandy)	٠	< 5
		-	(sandy)	-	5-20
		Very	(sandy)	۲	20-50
Fine (SILTS &	Secondary	Slightly	(sandy) 🏶		< 35
CLAYS)	constituents before				
(< 35% silt &	principal (excluding				
clay sizes)	gravel, cobbles &	-	(sandy) 🏶		35-65
	boulders) 🛦				

- + Full name of finer material should be given.
- Secondary soil type as appropriate; use 'silty/clayey' when a distinction cannot be made between the two.
- If cobbles or boulders are also present in a coarse or fine soil, this can be indicated by using one of the following terms relating to the very coarse fraction after the principal: 'with occasional' (<5), 'with many' (20-50), where figures in brackets are % very coarse material expressed as a fraction of the whole soil.

For fine soils, plasticity terms should also be described where possible, viz.: 'non-plastic' (generally silts), 'intermediate plasticity' (lean clays), 'high plasticity' (fat clays).

V) Other Qualifying Remarks (If requested)

Here any additional relevant information may be added

- e.g. (a) Particle shape & Composition
 - (b) Structure
 - (c) Discontinuities
- Notes: For full description of soils derived from insitu rock weathering:
 - (a) Saprolites (rock texture/structure retained) described as rocks, supplemented by soil strength (but not relative density) and soil name terms in brackets.
 - (b) Residual Soils (rock texture/structure completely destroyed) describe as soils, supplemented by name of parent rock where apparent from field evidence.

VI) Additional Geological Information

Record geological name, which indicates geological origin or soil type (e.g. Alluvium, Debris Flow Deposit, Marine Deposit etc.). Refer to HKGS maps & memoirs for further information.

ROCK DESCRIPTION

For the preparation of drillhole logs the rock description may report the following information as appropriate in the order indicated:

Strength Colour Material Weathering/Alteration Grain Size Rock Name Discontinuities Additional Geological Information Other qualifying remarks

The following descriptions were achieved from GUIDE TO ROCK AND SOIL DESCRIPTIONS (GEOGUIDE 3)

I)	Strength	
	Term	Identification
	Extremely weak	Easily crumbled by hand: indented deeply by thumbnail.
	Very weak	Crumbled with difficulty: scratched easily by thumbnail: peeled by pocketknife.
	Weak	Broken into pieces by hand: scratched by thumbnail: peeled by pocketknife:
		deep indentations (to 5mm) by point of geological pick: hand-held specimen
		easily broken by single light hammer blow.
	Moderately weak	Broken with difficulty in two hands: scratched with difficulty by thumbnail:
		difficult to peel but easily scratched by pocketknife: shallow indentations easily
		made by point of pick: hand-held specimen usually broken by single light hammer
		blow.
	Moderately strong	Scratched by pocketknife: shallow indentations made by firm blow with point
		of pick: hand-held specimen usually broken by single firm hammer blow.
	Strong	Firm blows with point of pick cause only superficial surface damage: hand-held
		specimen requires more than one firm hammer blow to break.
	Very strong	Many hammer blows required to break specimen.
	Extremely strong	Specimen only chipped by hammer blows.

II) Colour

Parameter	Terms
Value	Light, Dark
Chroma	Pinkish, Reddish, Yellowish, Orangish, Brownish, Greenish, Bluish, Purplish, Greyish
Hue	Pink, Red, Yellow, Orange, Brown, Green, Blue, Purple, White, Grey, Black.

For uniform colour distribution, choose a hue supplemented by a value and / or chroma if necessary.

For non-uniform distribution, repeat this procedure using one of the following descriptors: spotted, mottled, dappled, streaked and striped (e.g. light pinkish grey spotted with black).

III) Grain Size

Term	Size of Component Particles	Equivalent Soil Grade
Fine grained	2-60 microns (grains larger than 10 microns visible using X10 hand lens)	Silt
Medium grained	60 microns-2 mm (just visible to naked eyes)	Sand size
Coarse grained	2-60 mm	Gravel size

IV) Material Weathering / Alteration

Decomposition Term	Grade Symbol	Typical Characteristics
Residual Soil	VI	Original rock textures completely destroyed; can be crumbled by hand and finger pressure into constituent grains.
Completely Decomposed	v	Original rock texture preserved; can be crumbled by hand & finger pressure into constituent grains; easily indented by point of geological pick; slakes in water; completely discoloured compared with fresh rock.
Highly Decomposed	. IV	Can be broken by hand into smaller pieces; makes a dull sound when struck by hammer; not easily indented by point of pick; does not slake in water; completely discoloured compared with fresh rock.
Moderately Decomposed	III	Cannot usually be broken by hand; easily broken by hammer; makes a dull or slight ringing sound when struck by hammer; completely stained throughout.
Slightly Decomposed	Π	Not broken easily by hammer; makes a ringing sound when struck by hammer; fresh rock colours generally retained but stained neat joint surfaces.
Fresh Rock	Ι	Not broken easily by hammer; makes a ringing sound when struck by hammer; no visible signs of decomposition (i.e. no discolouration).

This classification is applicable to igneous and volcanic rocks and other rocks of equivalent strength in fresh state.

Disintegration

Describe small-scale cracking and fracturing caused by mechanical weathering, where apparent.

Alteration

Describe state of alteration (e.g. mineralised, kaolinised) where apparent.

V) Rock Name (Including Grain Size)

Igneous	Coarse - (6–20mm), Medium - (2–6mm) & Fine - (0.06–2mm) grained GRANITE, GRANODIORITE, Very Fine - grained (< 0.06mm) RHYOLITE, BASALT. (Common types only, see GEOGUIDE 3 for others).
Pyroclastic	PYROCLASTIC BRECCIA (> 60mm), Lapilli TUFF (2-60mm), Coarse ash TUFF (0.06-2mm), Fine ash TUFF (< 0.06mm).
Metamorphic	Foliated – SCHIST (> 0.06mm), PHYLLITE (> 0.06mm), Non – foliated –MARBLE, QUARTZITE and FAULT BRECCIA.
Sedimentary	CONGLOMERATE, BRECCIA (>2mm), SANDSTONE (0.06–2mm), MUDSTONE (< 0.06mm) = SILTSTONE (0.002–0.06mm) + CLAYSTONE (< 0.002mm). (Common types only).

If rock name cannot be identified, describe grain size quantitatively, including textural term where appropriate.

VI) Discontinuities Spacing

Term	Spacing
Extremely widely spaced	> 6m
Very widely spaced	2–6mm
Widely spaced	0.6–2mm
Medium spaced	200–600mm
Closely spaced	60–200mm
Very closely spaced	20-60mm
Extremely closely spaced	< 20mm

Aperture Size

Wide (>200mm), Moderately wide (60–200mm), Moderately narrow (20–60mm), Narrow (6–20mm), Very narrow (2–6mm), Extremely narrow (>0–2mm), Tight (zero).

Infilling (Nature)

Clean	Surface staining	Decomposed/Disintegrated rock	Quartz
Non-cohesive soil	Cohesive soil	Calcite	Manganese
Kaolin	Other (Specify)		

Give full description of infill materials/minerals where appropriate.

Fracture State

In drillhole cores, measure the following:

```
TOTAL CORE RECOVERY (TCR) Defined as summed length of all pieces of recovered core expressed as a percentage of length drilled (core run). When the core is highly fragmented, the length of such core is estimated by assembling the fragments and estimating the length of core that the fragments appear to represent.
SOLID CORE RECOVERY (SCR) Defined as the length of material, which is recovered as solid core pieces at full diameter expressed as a percentage of the length of core (drill) run.
```

3) ROCK QUALITY DESIGNATION (RQD)	Defined as the length of solid core recovered in lengths greater than 100mm expressed as a percentage of the length of core (drill) run. Measurements are made along the core axis and core pieces must possess a full diameter to be included in the RQD value.
4) FRACTURED INDEX (FI)	Defined as the number of fractures per metre run, measured over any length of reasonably uniform character, which is not necessarily the core run length. If there is a marked change in fracture frequently during a run the fracture index should be calculated for each part of the run separately. Where core is too highly fractured for fracture index to be measured the term N.I. meaning NOT INTACT is inserted. NR – NO RECOVERY NA – NOT APPLICABLE

NOTE : Artificial fractures caused by core handling or by the drilling process are ignored when measuring the above values.

VII) Additional Geological Information

Record geological formation name if known. Avoid conjecture. Refer to HKGS maps & memoirs for further information.

VIII) Other Qualifying Remarks

At the end of the description comments can be made on the nature of joints and discontinuities, mineralisation and other factors that may be engineering or descriptive importance.

Examples:

.

Very strong, light greyish pink, slightly decomposed fine-grained GRANITE, with closely to medium spaced, iron stained joints dipping at subhorizontal to 10°, 40° and 85°. (One subvertical joint)

Extremely weak, light yellowish brown spotted with grey, dark brown and white, completely decomposed, medium-grained GRANITE, with occasional relict joints. (Slightly silty/clayey, fine SAND with some subangular fine to coarse gravel).

Appendix H

Legend for use on Exploratory Station Records

Legend Code (field GEOL LEG)

AGGLOM ASPHALT BASALT BIOCLAST BLANK BLDR BLDRCBBL BRECCIA CBBL CLAY CLAYSTON CONCRETE CONGLOM DOLOMITE FILL FISSIN GABBRO GNEISS GRACBBZS GRANITE GRAV GRAVCBBL LST LSTSLT MARBLE METACON METAREG MUDSTONE ORGANICS PEGMTITE PHYLLITE QUARTZIT RHYOLITE SAND SANDSTON SCHIST SHALE SILT SILTSTON SYENITE TRACHYTE TUFF TUFFFINE

Agglomerate Asphalt Basalt Shells Material not recovered Boulders Boulders and Cobbles Sedimentary Breccia Cobbles Clay Claystone Concrete Conglomerate **Dolomitic Limestone** Artificial Fill Fissure Infill Gabbro, Lamprophyre Gneiss Silty Sandy GRAVEL and COBBLES Granite Gravel Gravel and Cobbles Limestone Interbedded Limestone and Siltstone Marble Metamorphic Rock - contact Metamorphic Rock - regional Mudstone Organic, Peat Pegmatite Phyllite, Mylonite Quartzite Rhyolites Sand Sandstone Schist Shale Silt Siltstone Granodiorite, Syenite, Monzonite Trachyte Coarse Ash Tuff, Lapilli Tuff Fine Ash Tuff

L

Notes :

In common ground the following codes are added to the main descriptor in the order stated below to denote secondary constituents :

(i) C - Clay	(v)	K - Cobbles
(ii) Z-Silt	(vi)	O - Organic
(iii) S - Sand	(vii)	B - Shells
(iv) G - Gravel		

e.g. a silty CLAY with occasional shells and organic material is coded as CLAYZOB

		BASALT		BLANK				CBBL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
	CLAYB	CLAYG	CLAYO		CLAYSTON	CLAY2		$\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} CLAY2G \\ \hline & \hline \\ \hline$
CLAY20 	CLAY2S [1-1-1] + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 +	CLAY2SB	CLAY2SG 	CLAY2SO (1220) (1220				FILL
		GNEISS	GRACEBEZS 6 6 0 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	GRANITE ++++++ +++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	GRAV 0		GRAVCBBL	CHAPTON CONCERNENT CON
GRAVS 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 9 6 6 6 6 7 9 6 6 6 7 9 6 6 6 7 9 6 6 7 9 7 9 7 9 7 9 7 9 7 9 7 9 7 9	$\begin{array}{c} G^{\rm AV Z} \\ G^{\rm AV Z} \\$	GRAV23 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0			MARBLE HITTOTT	METACON	HETAREG	
<u>(() (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) </u>	PEGNTITE + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	PHYLLITE	QUARTZIT	RHYOLITE + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	SAND	C C C	SANDC	
			SANDG 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	SANDSTON	SAND2	SANDZB CICICICI CICICICI CICICICICICICICICICI		SAND20
SCHIST	SRALE			SILTC 				
$\begin{array}{c} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{$		SILTG			SILTSTON		SYENITE × </td <td>TRACHTTE X X X X X X X X X X X</td>	TRACHTTE X X X X X X X X X X X

Figure 1.1 Location Plan of the Site





(Print by Lam, Raymond)

Figure 1.2 Lot Boundary Plan of the Site



(Print by Lam, Raymond)

Figure 1.3 Aerial View of the Site



BlankOrtho

Division

Scale

1:5000

Date

2/10/2024



GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING OFFICE

Figure 2.1 Topographic Survey Plan



Figure 2.2

Topographic Survey Plan in Map



Extract of GASP Report Map – Geological Map



ENTLI – Landslide Record



(Print by Lam, Raymond)

Area of QRA of Boulder Fall Hazards No. S7_U



Extract of GASP Report Map – Geotechnical Land Use Map



Extract of GASP Report Map – Physical Constraints Map



Record from Historical Landslide Catchment Inventory


(Print by Lam, Raymond)